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AGENDA 

A. Disposition of Minutes for Meeting 

B. Old Business 

C. Subcommittee Item 

C.1.a. = Tab 1 

C.1.b. = Tab 2 

C. l.c. = Tab 3 

1. Discussion Items 

a. Anonymous Reporting Hotline Stats Update 
Michelle DiLullo, Staff Auditor, will report. 

b. FY23 Second Quarter Internal Audit Plan Update 
Michelle Dilullo, Staff Auditor, will report. 

c. Audit Matrix Open Audit Recommendations Update 

Board Room 
Tod Hall 

This matrix tracks the progress of the implementation of recommendations for 
improvement or correction made by internal and external aud itors. 
Michelle Dilullo, Staff Auditor, will report. 

C.1.d. = Tab 4 d. Update on Enterprise Risk Management 
Julie Gentile, Director of Environmental and Occupational Health and Safety, will report. 

C.1.e. = Tab 5 e. Sunshine Law Star Rating for FY22 
Neal McNa ll y, Vice Pres ident for Finance and Business Operations, will report. 

C.1.f. = Tab 6 f. NCAA Agreed Upon Procedures Report, FY 2022 
Neal McNally, Vice Pres ident for Finance and Business Operations, wi ll report. 

C. 1.g. = Tab 7 g. WYSU-FM Radio Station Audit, FY 2022 
Neal McNally, Vice Pres ident fo r Finance and Business Operations, will report. 



D. New Business 

E. ;Adjournment 



YSU Anonymous Reporting Hotline 
Aggregated Statistics 
Fiscal Year 2023 Quarter 2 

Hotline Activity Quarter I Quarter 2 Quarter 3 

Reports received 4 

Closed 

Unsubstantiated/insufficient in formation - I -

Process enhancements noted - - -

Investigation 3 - -

Referred I - -

Total Closed 4 I 

Under review at quarter end 

Reporting Method Quarter I Quarter 2 Quarter 3 

Ethicspoint Phone I I -

Ethicspoint Website 3 - -

Total: 4 - -

Reporter Anonymity Quarter I Quarter 2 Quarter 3 

Anonymous 4 - -

Not anonymous - I -

Total: 4 I -

Fiscal Year 
Quarter 4 To Date 

Total 

5 

- I 

- -

- 3 

- I 

5 

Fiscal Ye:1r 
Quarter 4 To Date 

Total 

- 2 

- 3 

- 5 

Fiscal Year 
Quarter 4 To Date 

Total 

- 4 

- I 

- 5 



Project Area 

Current Year Audits: 

Student Billing, Collections, and Accounts 

Receivable 

Banner User Access 

External Funding-related to t he Division of 

Workforce Educat ion & Innovat ion 

Facilities and Building Access 

Consulting & Advisory 

Enterprise Risk Management/Other 

Continuous Auditing Analvtics 
Payroll 

Accounts Payable 

EthicsPoint Hotline Monitoring 

Follow-up on Open Audit Recommendations 

Youngstown State University 

Quarterly Internal Audit Plan Update 

FY23 Q2 October 1 - December 31, 2022 

Projects 

1, I: 

Risk Category Risk Level* 

Financial & Operational High 

IT & Compliance High 

Operational, Financial, & High 

Compliance 

Facilities, Operational, & High 
Compliance 

Various Moderate 

Financial, Operational, Moderate 

Compliance 

Financial, Operational, Moderate 

Compliance 

Various High 

Various Various 

Actual 

Q2 

Status** Hours 

In Process 74 

In Process -

Planned -

Planned -

Ongoing 2 

Ongoing 39 

Ongoing 50 

Ongoing 6 
Ongoing 14 

Total Project Hours _ill 
* Risk Level 
Assessment of potential impact of risks 
and likelihood of risk events occurring; 
rating drives Internal Audit plan priorities: 

High - significant risk area, high priority for 
Internal Audit coverage 

Non-Project Hours 

Actual 

Q2 

Category Hours 

Medium - moderate risk area, moderate 
priority for Internal Audit coverage 

Professional Development 40 

Administrative: 

**Status Definitions 
Planned - as per audit plan, schedule to start in current FY 

In Process - in progress at quarter end 

Complete - audit procedures concluded and results communica ted 

Deferred · moved from current FY plan per updated risk assessment 

295 

Total Administrative Hours ~ 

Total Hours 520 

Actual Audit Pion 

YTD Budgeted 
Hours Hours 

74 200 

20 

200 

200 

2 155 

39 75 

50 75 

6 40 
14 70 

185 1,035 

Actual Audit Pion 
YTD Budgeted 

Hours Hours 

40 75 
295 450 

335 525 

520 1,560 



Audit Recommendations Status- FY2023 Q2 

I Recommendat ion 
Summary of Recommendation Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment \current Status Comment Audit Info Name 

Policies And Update policies to address Policies will be developed in this area. Financial management policies Financial management procedures 
Audit II 2020-01-01 

Procedures financia l management have been drafted for inclusion were added as section G in the Student 

Dated Issued 2/17/2020 -----------·----------------- requirements including tax status, in the Student Organization Organization Policies and also added 

Student Organizations accounting concepts, record policies and guidelines. to the Organization Advisor Manual. 
Risk Category Financial Audit keeping, contract requirements, Implementation to PNC w ill be presenting at the Student 

Risk Level Low funding mechanisms and organization leaders and Leadership Retreat. It will be recorded 

procedures, disbursement integration into website and and available online for ongoing 

Division Student Experience controls, agency account and off- student guidelines expected by training for student t reasurers. 

Deadline 8/31/2020 
campus cash accounts. Jan. 2023. 

New Deadline 1/31/2023 

Current Status On Schedule 

I I I I I 

II Recommendation 
Summary of Recommendation Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Audit Info Name 

Current Status Comment 

Restricted Giving Current procedures and Work group has been convened. This Significant progress has been Through collaboration between YSUF, The 
Audit II 2021-02-04 

Within University And communication mechanisms need group will include representatives from made; but due to staff turnovers in Financial Aid Office, and the Controller's 

Dated Issued 7/29/2021 Affiliated to be reassessed and evaluated in University and Foundation. The group will the Controller's Office, including Office, we have streamlined processes and 

Organizations - order to ensure that individua ls assess and evaluate training, the Gifts Coordinator position, the included ALL endowed funds (YSU Foundation 

Risk Category Financial pace has been slower than and YSU) in the communication to campus. 
-------------------------- throughout the university have the communication and adherence to Effective January 2023, all endowed anticipated. Based on operational 

Risk Level Low Donor Restricted training and necessary information procedures for the purpose of ensuring risk, the Special Assistant to the scholarships spending budgets (YSUF and YSU) 

Finance and Business Funds to administer restricted giving, use continued effectiveness, improving AVP of Finance & Controller has 
will be communicated to awarding authorities 

Division Operations of restricted funds and efficiency and establishing best practices. been assigned to lead this project 
by Financial Aid and all endowed 

relationships with donors in an to ensure that progress continues. 
programmatic/award spending fund balances 

Deadline 7/31/2022 will be communicated to the 
effective and efficient manner. In addition, effective Sept. 1, 2022 colleges/departments by the Controller's 

New Deadline 2/28/2022 the Gifts Coordinator position will Office. 
once again be filled and extensive 

Current Status CLOSED training will begin. 

I I I I I 
Recommendation 

Summary of Recommendation Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Audit Info Name 
Current Status Comment 
' 

Audit II 2022-Adv-Ol 
Noncompliance In Management should review travel Management is responsive to the need for Travel Guidelines currently address Travel Guidelines currently address t he 

Travel Policy Updates guidelines and consider the need specific direction on University travel and the Ohio Ethic Commission Ohio Ethic Commission prohibition on 

Dated Issued 1/15/2000 --------------------------- to update these guidelines to related use of affinity programs. Updated prohibition on airline rewards, but airline rewards, but are silent w it h 

Advisory/Travel provide specific direction to guidelines will be developed. are silent with regard to hotel regard to hotel rewards (other than no 
Risk Category Financial employees regarding University 

rewards (other than no 
reimbursement for expenses paid via 

travel and related use of affinity 
reimbursement for expenses paid 

points. Language addressing hotel Risk Level Moderate via points. Language addressing 
Finance and Business programs. hotel rewards and other affinity rewards and other affinity programs 

Division Operations will be incorporated into the next programs will be incorporated into 

Deadline 12/31/2022 the next Travel Guidelines update Travel Guidelines update scheduled for 

scheduled for January 1, 2023. January 1, 2023. 

New Deadline 2/28/2023 

Current Status On Schedule 

Page 1 



Audit Recommendations Status- FY2023 Q2 

I 
Recommendation 

Summary of Recommendation Audit Info Name 
Summary of Original Response Prior Status Comment Current Status Comment 

Audit II 2022-Adv-02 
Noncompliance In Management should ensure that Travel Guidelines were revised February 1, Language addressing hotel rewards Language addressing hotel rewards 

Travel Employee faculty and st aff are adequately 2021 and training developed and and other affinity programs will be and other affinity programs will be 

Dated Issued 1/15/2022 Training trained regarding travel guidelines. implemented in M arch 2021, prior to this incorporated into the next Travel incorporated into the next Travel 

-------------------------- recommendation being made in December 
Guidelines and Training Material Guidelines and Training Material 

Risk Category Financial Advisory/Travel of 2021. 
update scheduled for January 1, 

update scheduled for January 1, 2023. 
2023. A communication will go 

A communication w ill go out to Risk Level Low out to Campus which will include a 
Finance and Business recap of any revisions made and Campus which will include a recap of 

Division Operations any revisions made and w ill also will also include links to the revised 

Deadline 12/31/2022 
Travel Guidelines and the Travel include links to the revised Travel 

Training Site on Blackboard. Guidelines and the Travel Training Site 

New Deadline 2/28/2023 on Blackboard. 

Current Status On Schedule 

I I 

Page 2 



Enterprise Risk Management 
March 2023 

W I 
YOUNGSTOWN 
STATE 

1 
UNIVERSITY 

ERM Update 

• Executive Committee met 

• Risk Council met 

• Established Working Groups 
• Minors on Campus 
• Liability Releases and Waivers 
• Mental Health 

• Developed Risk Management Webpage 

W I YOUNGSTOWN 
STATE 
UNIVERSITY 



Minors on Campus Update 
• Fact Finding of what current policies and procedures are being followed on 

campus 
• Campus Rec 
• Academic Departments 
• Athletics 

• Coordinate into one OWNER under Risk Management 
• Registration Process 
• Documents and Forms 
• Training 
• Background Checks 

• Implementation Plan 
• Develop webpage 
• Train groups at department/division meetings 
• Checklist for reference 

. ·.. J._ ·. ~:l] 1 YOUNGSTOWN ,- STATE 
. - . UNIVERSITY 

Liability Releases and Waivers 
•Weare ALL responsible to protect the HEALTH and SAFETY of 

YSU students, employees, and visitors 

• Work closely with Legal Affairs 
• Develop scope and applicability 
• Documents and Forms 

• Help minimize legal exposure to YSU in the event of an injury 
to a participant or property damage in connection with a 
YSU sponsored trip, program, or activity. 

• Heavily focus on communication and education from top-down 

• Plan for the BEST but be prepared for the WORST 

_ -_ -r -) I YOUNGSTOWN 
1/,- STATE 

- ~-i UNIVERSITY 



Mental Health 
• Identified by United Educators (UE) as high risk for 2023 with 

potential for 6% premium credit 

• Partnered with The Jed Foundation 
• Provides support, best practices, and guidance to improve student 

mental health and prevent suicide 
• Perform audit of current program and processes 

• Develop custom plan with tools, strategies, and techniques to improve 
student mental health and a more connected community 

• Office of the Dean of Students is leading this effort 
• Have completed the first steps of the audit 

Insurance Update 
• Two significant Property Claims 

• December Storm 24th-26th 
• 6 Buildings on Campus 
• Estimated Cost of $325K 
• 11 of the 13 IUC schools will have claims 

• Cost saving for YSU- deductible of $100K divided by 11, Pool Penalty of 
30% divided by 9 

• Planetarium Fire Jan 9th 
• Roof Repair- Contractor 

• Estimated Cost- dependent on equipment damage, dome $400K 
• Subrogation of Costs- $100K deductible 
• Estimated Time of repair- 6 to 8 months 

-w/ ... ~ 
1 

YOUNGSTOWN 
·, . · STATE 

UNIVERSITY 



o•• -;_;(gi~,~•/•·t AUDITS LOCAL GOVERNMENT OPEN GOVERNMENT RESOURCES CONTACI US QUICK LINKS ~s.on:,....,,,, ~ 

OPEN GOVERNMENT Open Goverrvnenl Trainings Pubic RecOfds SloRS SlaRS Results 

StaRS 
Star Rating System 

Monitoring transparency in government 

Reach for a star ... by meeting every Sunshine Low requirement. Then add 
best practices from the list below lo achieve a multiple-star ro ting 

* 
** *** **** 

Complian t: Meets all Sunshine Low requirements 

Complian t. p lus 1-2 best practices 

Compliant. p lus 3·4 best prac tices 

Complian t. p lus 5 or more best practices 

Name of Enfily County Audij Period Compianf ! sest Prochces 

Youngstown State Uni1e1~1,-

Youngstonn Slate Uni,er;ity 

Youngstown Slate University 

l,lahonlng 
07/ 01 /2019 lo 

06/30/2020 

f.lchoning 
07/01 /2020 lo 
06/30/2021 

1,lohoning 
07/01 /2021 la 
06/3012022 

I 
lslanore 
clickable) 

* *** 
* *** 
* *** 

Best Practices for: Youngstown State University (ldahoning County) 

I. 0 Method to Track Public Records Requests 

2. 0 Standard Request Forms 

3. 0 Public Records Request Acknov.itedgemenl 

4. D Public Records Custodian Identified ond Trained 

5. D Prompt Certified Public Records Training 

6. 0 Online Presence - Upcoming Events and Office Operations 

7. 0 Online Presence - Officio! Documents 

This en tit I receivecf tl~e Highest Achie, ement in Open and Transparent 
Go•;ernment .L·::ord 

*NOTE: Best practices 4 and 5 apply ta elected officials ond are not applicable ta state universities. 

Source: https://ohioauditor.gov/open/StaRS results.html 

Non-Compfianl 
(x's are clickable) 
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Thoran 

Independent Accountant's Report 
on Applying Agreed-upon Procedures 

To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 
Suite 100 

250 S. High Street 
Columbus, OH 43215 

Tel: 614.849.3000 
Fax: 6 14.221.3535 

plantemoran.com 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on Youngstown State University's (the 
"Institution") Intercollegiate Athletics Program Statement of Revenues and Expenses (the 
"Statement") under National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) Bylaw 3.2.4.17 for the year 
ended June 30, 2022. The Institution's management is responsible for the Institution's 
Intercollegiate Athletics Program Statement of Revenues and Expenses under NCAA Bylaw 
3.2.4.17 for Division I. 

The Institution has agreed to the procedures performed and acknowledged that they are 
appropriate to meet the intended purpose of performing testing on certain intercollegiate 
athletics activity. Additionally, the required agreed-upon procedures are prescribed by the NCAA 
annually through published instructions, which is deemed as acknowledgement that the 
procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. The procedures below are specified 
in the NCAA's 2022 Agreed-upon Procedures instructions. No other parties have agreed to and 
acknowledged the appropriateness of the procedures. This report may not be suitable for any 
other purpose. The procedures performed may not address all items of interest to a user of this 
report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report; as such, users are responsible for 
determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. We make no 
representation regarding the sufficiency of these procedures, either for the purpose intended or 
for any other purpose. 

An agreed-upon procedures engagement involves performing specific procedures that the 
engaging party has agreed to and acknowledged to be appropriate for the intended purpose of 
the engagement and reporting on findings based on the procedures performed. As agreed to by 
the Institution, for the purpose of performing these procedures, exceptions are reported in 
accordance with the NCAA's 2022 Agreed-upon Procedures instructions. 

Agreed-upon Procedures Related to the Intercollegiate Athletics Program Statement of 
Revenues and Expenses 

The procedures that we performed and our results are as follows: 

Internal Control Structure 

A. Related to the Institution's internal control structure: 

1) We met with the Institution's VP of finance to identify areas of significant interest and 
specific agreed-upon procedures related to both internal controls and other specified 
areas. This discussion did not identify any areas of significant interest or any other 
agreed-upon procedures. 



To James P. Tressel , President 
Youngstown State University 

2) We met with the director of intercollegiate athletics and inquired about the general 
control environment over intercollegiate athletic finances, the level of control 
consciousness in the Institution, the competence of personnel, and the protection of 
records and equipment. The discussion did not identify any weaknesses in controls , and 
the general control environment is thought to be strong with competent and consistent 
personnel year over year. 

3) We obtained the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 and any 
additional reports regarding internal controls , if the Institution was audited independent 
of these agreed-upon procedures, and any corrective action taken in response to 
comments concerning the internal control structure. 

4) We obtained any documentation of the accounting systems and procedures unique to 
the intercollegiate athletics department. 

Cash disbursements, cash receipts, and athletic employee payroll are addressed in 
connection with the audit of the Institution's financial statements. The following control 
environment and accounting systems are (a) unique to intercollegiate athletics and (b) 
have not been addressed in connection with the audit of the Institution's financial 
statements. We performed the following procedure: 

i. We selected one game and tested the ticket collection receipting process by 
comparing the total receipts for the game to the reconciliation and documentation of 
the related cash deposit amount with the bank. 

Result: We noted no exceptions. We selected one football game during the year and 
agreed the total receipts for the event on game day to deposit slips of the related cash 
deposit amount. Since there were minimal gate sales for the game, we selected four 
additional days of cash deposits made by the Institution's box office and tied general 
ledger activity to bank statements in order to verify the cash deposit process. 

The ticket cash receipt amounts for the transactions were as follows: 

Ticket 

Sales Deposit Deposit 

Event Date Sporting Event Amount Amount Date 

11/13/2021 Football vs. N. Dakota State University $ 344 $ 344 11/16/2021 

Deposit 

Date of Revenue Amount Amount __ D_e~po_s_it_D_a_t_e __ 

11/9/2021 $ 

11/11/2021 
11/12/2021 
11/13/2021 

80 $ 80 
100 100 
363 363 
152 152 

2 

11/12/2021 
11/15/2021 
11/16/2021 
11/16/2021 



To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

NCAA Reporting 

8. Procedure: We obtained the information submitted to the NCAA, including the financial data 
detailing operating revenues, expenses, and capital related to the Institution's intercollegiate 
athletics program that was submitted to the NCAA, and agreed the amounts to the 
Statement included in the agreed-upon procedures for the reporting period. 

Result: We noted no discrepancies. 

C. Procedure for Grants-in-Aid: We agreed the sports sponsored reported in the NCAA 
Membership Financial Reporting System to the Calculation of Revenue Distribution 
Equivalencies Report (CRDE) from Compliance Assistant (CA) or equivalent supporting 
equivalency calculations from the Institution. The NCAA Membership Financial Reporting 
System populates the sports from the NCAA Sports Sponsorship and Demographics Form 
as they are reported by the Institution between May and August. We compared current year 
Grants-in-Aid revenue distribution equivalencies to prior year reported equivalencies per the 
Membership Financial Report submission. We inquired and documented an explanation for 
any variance greater than +/- 4% in the results. 

2020-2021 

Grants-In-Aid Total 

Baseball 12.16 
Men's Basketball 12.83 
Football 69.70 
Men's Golf 5.24 
Men's Swimming and Diving 5.62 
Men's Tennis 4.46 
Women's Basketball 14.32 
Women's Bowling 3.11 
Women's Lacrosse 3.17 
Women's Soccer 11.38 
Women's Tennis 7.70 
Women's Track, Outdoor 19.67 
Women's Volleyball 7.82 

2021-2022 

Total 

11.56 
16.07 
66.82 

5.01 
8.99 
4.27 

15.04 
6.14 
8.58 

12.30 
6.72 

22.23 
11.60 

% 

Change ____ Ex ___ pl_an_a_tio_n_o_f_Va_ri_an_c_e __ pe_r_M_a_na .... g __ eme_n_t __ _ 

-4.93% Decrease in roster size 
25.25% Increase in roster size 
-4.13% Decrease in roster size 
-4.39% Decrease in roster size and changes in scholarship amounts offered 
59.96% Newer program; growing rapidly 
-4.26% Decrease in roster size and changes in scholarship amounts offered 
5.03% The institution offered more aid during the year 

97.43% Increase in roster size 
170.66% Newer program; growing rapidly 

8.08% Increase in roster size 
-12.73% Decrease in roster size 
13.01% Increase in roster size 
48.34% 2020-2021 equivalencies awarded appear lower due to prior year data 

entry issue where scholarship amounts entered into compliance 
software were lower than actual scholarship amounts awarded. 
Increase due to actual scholarship amounts awarded entered into 
Compliance Assistant software for 2021-2022. 

Result: We noted the Membership Financial Reporting System information provided by 
management was in draft form, and management represented there would be no changes to 
the final submission. With the draft provided by management, we noted no discrepancies. 

D. Procedure for Sports Sponsorship: We obtained the Institution's Sports Sponsorship and 
Demographics Form report for the reporting year between May and August. We validated 
that the countable sports reported by the Institution meet the minimum requirements set 
forth in Bylaw 20.9.6.3 related to the number of contests and the number of participants in 
each contest that is counted toward meeting the minimum contest requirement. We 
compared current year number of sports sponsored to prior year reported total per the 
Membership Financial Report submission. We inquired and documented an explanation for 
any variance in the results. 

3 



To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

Result: We noted the Membership Financial Reporting System information provided by 
management was in draft form, and management represented there would be no changes to 
the final submission. With the draft provided by management, we noted no discrepancies. 

E. Procedure for Pell Grants: We agreed the total number of Division I student-athletes who, 
during the academic year, received a Pell Grant award (e.g., Pell Grant recipients on full 
athletic aid, Pell Grant recipients on partial athletic aid, and Pell Grant recipients with no 
athletic aid) and the total dollar amount of these Pell Grants reported in the NCAA 
Membership Financial Reporting System to a report, generated out of the Institution's 
financial aid records, of all student-athlete Pell Grants. We compared current year Pell 
Grants total to prior year reported total per the Membership Financial Report submission. 
We inquired and documented an explanation for any variance greater than +/- 20 grants in 
the results. 

Result: We noted the Membership Financial Reporting System information provided by 
management was in draft form, and management represented there would be no changes to 
the final submission. The total number of Pell Grants in 2021 and 2022 was 126 and 123, 
respectively. We agreed the total number of student-athletes who received a Pell Grant 
award during the academic year and the total dollar amount of the Pell Grants to be reported 
in the NCAA Membership Financial Reporting System to the reports generated from the 
Institution's financial aid records and noted no discrepancies. 

Notes, Disclosures, and Other Procedures 

F. Athletics-Related Capital Assets and Expenditures Procedure: We obtained the 
Institution's policies and procedures for acquiring, approving, depreciating, and disposing of 
intercollegiate athletics-related assets, as described in Note 2. We obtained a schedule of 
athletics-related capital expenditures made by athletics, the Institution, and affiliated 
organizations during the period. We agreed the schedule to the Institution's general ledger. 
We selected a sample of one transaction to validate existence of the transaction and 
accuracy of recording and recalculated totals. 

Result: We selected the 2022 Trackman addition for $24,245.25 and agreed it to the 
purchase order and the invoice dated 4/13/2022. We agreed total institutional property, 
plant, and equipment to the Institution's audited financial statements. We noted no 
exceptions. 

G. Athletics-Related and Total Institutional Debt Procedure: We obtained repayment 
schedules for all outstanding intercollegiate athletics-related debt maintained by the 
Institution during the reporting period. We recalculated annual maturities (consisting of 
principal and interest) provided in the schedules obtained and agreed the total annual 
maturities to supporting documentation and the Institution's general ledger, as applicable. 
The repayment schedule is disclosed in Note 3. We agreed the total outstanding athletics­
related debt and total institutional debt to supporting documentation and the Institution's 
audited financial statements, if available, or the Institution's general ledger. 

Result: We agreed all outstanding intercollegiate debt to the repayment schedule in Note 3. 
We agreed total institutional debt to the Institution's audited financial statements. We noted 
no exceptions. 

4 



To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

H. Excess Transfers to Institution and Conference Realignment Expenses Procedure: 
We requested the general ledger detail and would have compared the total expenses 
reported for excess transfers to the Institution and conference realignment expenses for a 
sample of one transaction if applicable. 

Result: Management represented that this step is not applicable, as there were no excess 
transfers to the Institution or conference realignment expenses during the reporting period. 
We noted no exceptions. 

I. Procedure: Changes in loan, endowment, or plant funds related to intercollegiate athletics 
shall not be included in the Statement. 

1) We obtained and disclosed significant additions to restricted funds related to 
intercollegiate athletics, as well as significant changes to endowment and plant funds. 
Significant is defined as exceeding 10 percent of total revenues or expenses in the 
Statement. 

2) We obtained and disclosed the value of endowments at the fiscal year-end that are 
dedicated to the sole support of athletics. We agreed the fair market value of the 
schedule to supporting documentation, the general ledger and the audited financial 
statements, if available. We agreed the total fair market value of athletics dedicated 
endowments and institutional endowments to supporting documentation, the Institution's 
general ledger and/or audited financial statements, if available. 

3) We obtained and disclosed the value of all pledges at the fiscal year-end that support 
athletics. 

4) We obtained and disclosed the athletics department fiscal year-end fund balance. 

Result: We disclosed significant additions to contributions in Note 1 and all other items in 
Note 4. 

Intercollegiate Athletics Program Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

J. Procedure: We obtained the Statement for the reporting period, prepared by management, 
and agreed all amounts back to the Institution's general ledger. 

Result: We noted no exceptions. 

K. Procedure: We agreed each revenue and expense amount from the Statement to prior year 
amounts and budget estimates. We compared each revenue and expense account over 
10% of total revenues and expenses, respectively, to prior period amounts and budget 
estimates. We obtained and documented any variations exceeding 10% of total revenues or 
expenses. 

Result: There were no variances that met the thresholds for required disclosure. 

5 



To James P. Tressel, President 
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L. Procedure: We performed additional procedures on the following revenue and expense 
categories unless the specific reporting category was less than 4% of total revenues or 
expenses. 

Result: See procedures below. 

Revenues 

M. Procedure: We agreed each revenue category reported in the Statement during the 
reporting period to supporting schedules provided by the Institution. 

Result: The supporting schedules provided by the Institution agreed to the Statement 
without exception. 

1) Ticket Sales Procedure: Ticket sales were less than 4% of total revenues, so additional 
procedures were not performed. 

2) Student Fees Procedure: No amounts were reported for this revenue category; 
therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

3) Direct State or Other Governmental Support Procedure: No amounts were reported 
for this revenue category; therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

4) Direct Institutional Support Procedure: We agreed a sample of one direct institutional 
support recorded by the Institution during the reporting period with the institutional 
supporting budget transfers documentation and other corroborative supporting 
documentation and recalculated totals. 

Result: We agreed the direct institutional support recorded for board-approved transfers 
to the journal entry recorded and the intercollegiate athletics operating budget. We noted 
no exceptions. 

5) Transfers Back to Institution Procedure: Transfers back to the Institution were less 
than 4% of total revenues, so additional procedures were not performed. 

6) Indirect Institutional Support Procedure: Indirect institutional support was less than 
4% of total revenues, so additional procedures were not performed. 

7) Guarantees Procedure: No amounts were reported for this revenue category; 
therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

8) Contributions Procedure: We obtained supporting documentation for each contribution 
of moneys, goods, or services received directly by an intercollegiate athletics program 
from any affiliated or outside organization, agency or group of individuals that constitutes 
10 percent or more of all contributions received for intercollegiate athletics during the 
reporting periods. We disclosed the source and dollar value of these contributions in the 
report. 

Result: We disclosed contributions over 10 percent in Note 1. 

9) In-Kind Procedure: No amounts were reported for this revenue category; therefore, 
additional procedures were not performed. 

6 
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10) Compensation and Benefits Provided by a Third Party Procedure: No amounts 
were reported for this revenue category; therefore, additional procedures were not 
performed. 

11) Media Rights Procedure: No amounts were reported for this revenue category; 
therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

12) NCAA Distributions Procedure: We agreed the amounts recorded in the revenue and 
expense reporting to general ledger detail for NCAA distributions and other corroborative 
supporting documents and recalculated totals. 

Result: A listing of NCAA distributions was obtained and tied to the recorded amount. 
Supporting communications from the Horizon League or NCAA were reviewed, 
supporting each NCAA distribution. We noted no exceptions. 

13) Conference Distributions and Conference Distributions of Football Bowl 
Generated Revenue Procedure: Conference distributions and conference distributions 
of football bowl generated revenue were less than 4% of total revenues, so additional 
procedures were not performed. 

14) Program Sales, Concessions, Novelty Sales and Parking Procedure: Program 
sales, concessions, novelty sales and parking were less than 4% of total revenues, so 
additional procedures were not performed. 

15) Royalties, Licensing, Advertisements and Sponsorships Procedure: Royalties, 
licensing, advertisements, and sponsorships were less than 4% of total revenues, so 
additional procedures were not performed. 

16) Sports Camp Revenues Procedure: No amounts were reported for this revenue 
category; therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

17) Athletics Restricted Endowment and Investment Income Procedure: Athletics 
restricted endowment and investment income were less than 4% of total revenues, so 
additional procedures were not performed. 

18) Football Bowl Revenues Procedure: No amounts were reported for this revenue 
category; therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

19) Other Revenues Procedure: Other revenues were less than 4% of total revenues, so 
additional procedures were not performed. 

Expenses 

N. Procedure: We agreed each expense category reported in the Statement during the 
reporting period to supporting schedules provided by the Institution. 

Result: The supporting schedules provided by the Institution agreed to the Statement 
without exception. 
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To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

We performed the following procedures for the indicated expense category: 

1) Athletic Student Aid Procedures: We selected a sample of 40 students from the listing 
of institutional student aid recipients during the reporting period (no less than 10% of the 
total student-athletes for institutions who have used the NCAA's CA software to prepare 
athletic aid detail, with a maximum sample size of 40, and no less than 20% of total 
student-athletes for institutions who have not, with a maximum sample size of 60). 

a. We obtained individual student account detail for each selection and agreed total aid 
in the Institution's student system to student detail in CA or the institution report that 
ties directly to the NCAA Membership Financial Reporting System. 

b. We performed a check of each student selected to ensure that their information was 
reported accurately in either the CA software or entered directly into the NCAA 
Membership Financial Reporting System using the following criteria: 

i. The equivalency value for each student-athlete in all sports, including head-count 
sports, needs to be converted to a full-time equivalency value. The full-time 
equivalency value is calculated using the athletic grant amount reported on the 
Calculation of Revenue Distribution Equivalencies Report from CA as the 
numerator and the full grant amount which is the total cost for tuition, fees, 
books, room and board for an academic year as the denominator. If using the 
NCAA CA software, this equivalency value should already be calculated on the 
CRDE report labeled "Revenue Distribution Equivalent Award." 

ii. Grants-in-aid is calculated by using the revenue distribution equivalencies by 
sport and in aggregate. (Athletic grant amount divided by the full grant amount.) 

iii. Other expenses related to attendance (also known as cost of attendance) should 
not be included in grants-in-aid revenue distribution equivalencies. Only tuition, 
fees, room, board, and course-related books are countable for grants-in-aid 
revenue distribution per Bylaw 20.02.7. 

iv. Full grant amount should be entered as a full year of tuition, not a semester or 
quarter. 

v. Student-athletes are to be counted once, regardless of multiple sport 
participation, and should not receive a revenue distribution equivalency greater 
than 1.00. 

vi. Athletics grants are valid for revenue distribution purposes only in sports in which 
the NCAA conducts championships competition, emerging sports for women and 
football bowl subdivision football. 

vii. Grants-in-aid are valid for revenue distribution purposes in NCAA sports that do 
not meet the minimum contests and participants' requirements of Bylaw 20.9.6.3. 

viii. Institutions providing grants to student-athletes listed on the CRDE as 
"Exhausted Eligibility (fifth-year)" or "Medical" receive credit in the grants-in-aid 
component. 
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To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

ix. The athletics aid equivalency cannot exceed maximum equivalency limits. 
However, the total revenue distribution equivalency can exceed maximum 
equivalency limits due to exhausted eligibility and medical equivalencies 
(reference Bylaw 15.5.3.1 ). 

x. If a sport is discontinued and the athletic grant(s) are still being honored by the 
Institution, the grant(s) are included in student-athlete aid for revenue distribution 
purposes. 

xi. All equivalency calculations should be rounded to two decimal places. 

xii. If a selected student received a Pell Grant, ensure that the value of the grant is 
not included in the calculation of equivalencies or the total dollar amount of 
student athletic aid expense for the Institution. 

xiii. If a selected student received a Pell Grant, ensure that the student's grant was 
included in the total number and total value of Pell Grants reported for revenue 
distribution purposes in the NCAA Membership Financial Reporting System. 

c. We recalculated totals for each sport and overall. 

Result: The total amount of the countable aid from the squad list tied to the amount 
shown on the Statement within an insignificant amount. As the Institution utilizes the CA 
software, we selected 10%, or 40 students. We noted differences during the 
recalculation of revenue distribution per student for 19 students and a difference in 
recalculation of contributable aid for 1 student. 
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To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

The student accounts tested are summarized below: 

Revenue Revenue 
Total Contributable Total Contributable Distribution Distribution 

Student Tested Aid Recalculated Aid Reeorted Recalculation Reeorted 

1 $ 2,000 2,000 0.10 0.10 
2 12,043 12,043 0.50 0.60 
3 12,736 12.736 0.55 0.65 
4 18,259 18,259 0.96 0.96 
5 19,624 19,624 0.85 1.00 
6 17,594 17,594 0.86 0.86 
7 17,169 17,169 0.73 0.88 
8 23,178 23,178 0.94 1.00 
9 23,678 23,678 0.96 1.00 
10 7,789 7,789 0.40 0.40 
11 8,500 8,500 0.36 0.43 
12 9,000 9,000 0.39 0.39 
13 9,000 9,000 0.44 0.44 
14 21,527 21,000 0.79 0.79 
15 19,805 19,805 0.77 0.77 
16 14,000 14,000 0.56 0.56 
17 9,211 9,211 0.39 0.47 
18 20,248 20,248 0.80 0.99 
19 12,953 12,953 0.43 0.58 
20 8,287 8,287 0.36 0.36 
21 23,318 23,318 0.96 1.00 
22 17,862 17,862 0.75 0.89 
23 29,708 29,708 0.94 0.94 
24 12,957 12,957 0.55 0.66 
25 10,587 10,587 0.46 0.55 
26 15,000 15,000 0.75 0.75 
27 11,000 11,000 0.48 0.58 
28 15,000 15,000 0.57 0.57 
29 4,000 4,000 0.20 0.20 
30 6,075 6,075 0.25 0.25 
31 12,604 12,604 0.45 0.45 
32 12,000 12,000 0.63 0.63 
33 16,400 16,400 0.65 0.65 
34 12,000 12,000 0.48 0.48 
35 29.792 29,792 0.97 0.97 
36 12,089 12,089 0.49 0.61 
37 15,000 15,000 0.60 0.75 
38 18,102 18,102 0.76 0.95 
39 19,272 19,272 0.85 1.00 
40 25,639 25,639 0.82 0.82 

2) Guarantees Procedure: Guarantees were less than 4% of total expenses, so additional 
procedures were not performed. 
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To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

3) Coaching Salaries, Benefits, and Bonuses Paid by the Institution and Related 
Entities Procedure: We obtained and inspected a listing of coaches employed by the 
Institution and related entities during the reporting period. We selected a sample of five 
coaches' contracts that includes men's basketball, football, and women's basketball from 
the above listing. We agreed the financial terms and conditions of each selection to the 
related coaching salaries, benefits, and bonuses recorded by the Institution and related 
entities in the Statement during the reporting period. We obtained and inspected payroll 
summary registers for each selection. We agreed related payroll summary registers to 
the related coaching salaries, benefits, and bonuses paid by the Institution and related 
entities expense recorded by the Institution in the Statement during the reporting period 
and recalculated totals. We agreed the totals recorded to any employment contracts 
executed for the sample selected. 

Result: We selected five coaches' contracts that included men's basketball, football, 
women's basketball, baseball and women's track and field. We agreed the financial 
terms and conditions of each to the related coaching salaries, benefits, and bonuses 
recorded by the Institution on the payroll detail. We agreed payroll detail totals to the 
Statement and recalculated totals. We noted no exceptions. 

4) Coaching Other Compensation and Benefits Paid by a Third Party Procedure: No 
amounts were reported for this expense category; therefore, additional procedures were 
not performed. 

5) Support Staff/Administrative Salaries, Benefits and Bonuses Paid by the 
Institution and Related Entities Procedure: We selected a sample of one support 
staff/administrative personnel employed by the Institution and related entities during the 
reporting period. We obtained and inspected payroll summary registers for the selection. 
We agreed related payroll summary registers to the related support staff/administrative 
salaries, benefits and bonuses paid by the Institution and related entities expense 
recorded by the Institution in the Statement during the reporting period. We also 
recalculated totals. 

Result: We selected one support staff/administrative personnel, the assistant director of 
auxiliary services and program. We noted no exceptions. 

6) Support Staff/Administrative Other Compensation and Benefits Paid by a Third 
Party Procedure: No amounts were reported for this expense category; therefore, 
additional procedures were not performed. 

7) Severance Payments Procedure: No amounts were reported for this expense 
category; therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

8) Recruiting Procedure: Recruiting was less than 4% of total expenses, so additional 
procedures were not performed. 
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To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

9) Team Travel Procedure: We obtained documentation of the lnstitution1s team travel 
policies. We agreed to existing institutional- and NCAA-related policies. We obtained 
general ledger detail and agreed to the total expenses reported. 

Result: We noted no exceptions. 

10) Equipment, Uniforms and Supplies Procedure: We obtained general ledger detail 
and agreed to the total expenses reported. We selected a sample of one transaction and 
agreed to supporting documentation. We recalculated totals. 

Result: We selected a transaction paid on 12/4/2021 for basketball equipment totaling 
$17,652.12 and agreed it to the purchase order, the invoice, and the check. We noted no 
exceptions. 

11) Game Expenses Procedure: Game expenses were less than 4% of total expenses, so 
additional procedures were not performed. 

12) Fund Raising, Marketing and Promotion Procedure: Fund raising, marketing and 
promotion were less than 4% of total expenses, so additional procedures were not 
performed. 

13) Sports Camp Expenses Procedure: No amounts were reported for this expense 
category; therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 

14) Spirit Groups Procedure: Spirit groups were less than 4% of total expenses, so 
additional procedures were not performed. 

15) Athletic Facility Debt Service, Leases and Rental Fees Procedure: Athletic facility 
debt service, leases and rental fees were less than 4% of total expenses, so additional 
procedures were not performed. 

16) Direct Overhead and Administrative Expenses Procedure: Direct overhead and 
administrative expenses were less than 4% of total expenses, so additional procedures 
were not performed. 

17) Indirect Institutional Support Procedure: We tested this with the revenue section -
Indirect Institutional Support. 

18) Medical Expenses and Medical Insurance Procedure: Medical expenses and medical 
insurance were less than 4% of total expenses, so additional procedures were not 
performed. 

19) Memberships and Dues Procedure: Memberships and dues were less than 4% of total 
expenses, so additional procedures were not performed. 

20) Student-Athlete Meals (non-travel) Procedure: Student-athlete meals (non-travel) 
were less than 4% of total expenses, so additional procedures were not performed. 

21) Football Bowl Expenses Procedure: No amounts were reported for this expense 
category; therefore, additional procedures were not performed. 
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To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

22) Other Operating Expenses and Transfers to Institution Procedure: We obtained 
general ledger detail and compared to the total expenses reported. We selected a 
sample of one transaction to validate existence of transaction and accuracy of recording 
and recalculated totals. 

Result: We selected a transaction paid on 3/14/2022 for team catering totaling $2,760 
and agreed it to the invoice, purchase card detail, and payment of purchase card 
statement. We noted no exceptions. 

Related to Affiliated and Outside Organizations not Under the Institution's Accounting 
Control 

0. In preparation for our procedures related to the Institution's affiliated and outside 
organizations we: 

1) Obtained from management a list of any affiliated and outside organizations that meet 
any of the following criteria: 

i. Booster organizations established by or on behalf of an intercollegiate athletics 
program 

ii. Independent or affiliated foundations or other organizations that have as a principal, 
or one of their principal purposes, the generating or maintaining of grants-in-aid or 
scholarships funds, gifts, endowments, or other moneys, goods or services to be 
used primarily by the intercollegiate athletics program 

iii. Alumni organizations that have as a principal, or one of their principal purposes, the 
generating of moneys, goods or services for or on behalf of an intercollegiate 
athletics program and that contribute moneys, goods or services directly to an 
intercollegiate athletics program, booster group, or independent or affiliated 
foundation as previously noted. 

2) We requested documentation on the Institution's practices and procedures for 
monitoring the internal controls in place and financial activities of these organizations. 
We inquired of management on the procedures for gathering information on the nature 
and extent of affiliated and outside organization activity for or on behalf of the 
Institution's intercollegiate athletics program. 

3) We obtained and inspected audited financial statements of the organization and any 
additional reports regarding internal controls and any corrective action taken in response 
to comments concerning the control environment that were provided to us by 
management. 

Result: We inquired of management as to whether they had identified any affiliated or 
outside organizations that meet the above criteria. Management provided a listing and 
indicated that the Penguin Club was the only outside organization that had expenses for 
or on behalf of the Institution's intercollegiate athlete program. Additionally, we noted the 
Penguin Club does not have audited financial statements, and the control environment is 
the same as that of the Institution. 
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To James P. Tressel, President 
Youngstown State University 

We were engaged by the Institution to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and 
conducted our engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). We were not engaged to, and did 
not, conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the 
expression of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the Institution's Intercollegiate Athletics 
Program Statement of Revenues and Expenses under National Collegiate Athletic Association 
Bylaw 3.2.4.17. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we 
performed additional procedures, other matters might have come to our attention that would 
have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of the Institution and to meet our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon 
procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Youngstown State University and 
the National Collegiate Athletic Association and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than those specified parties. 

Columbus, Ohio 
December 21, 2022 

~1~1 1'1.LC 
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Youngstown State University 

Intercollegiate Athletics Program Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

Operating Revenues 

Ticket SaJes 
Guarantees 
ContnbutJons 
In-Kind Contnbutions 
Direct State or Other Governmental Support 
Direct lnslilutional Support 
Less Transfers Back to Institution 
Indirect lnsututional Support 
NCAA Otstnbutions 
Conference Otstnbubons 
Broadcast Tele~mon, Radio and 1n1emet R19hts 
Program Sales, Concessions. Novelty SaJes and Parking 
Royalties, Licensing, Advertisements and Sponsorships 
Sports Camp Revenues 
Endovmient and Investment lncome 
Other 

Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Athletic Student Aid 
Guarantees 
Coaching Salaries. Benefrt.s and Bonuses Paid by the Institution 
Support S!atf/Administrative Salaries, Benefits and Bonuses Paid by the lnst1tut1on 
Recruiting 
Team Travel 
Equipment, Uniforms and Supplies 
Game Expenses 
Fund Raising, Marketing and Promotion 
Spons Camp Expenses 
Athletic Faclltties Debt Service, Leases and Rental Fees 
Direct Overhead and Administrative Expenses 
Spirit Groups 
Medical Expenses and Medical Insurance 
Memberships and Dues 
Student-Athlete Meals(non-travel) 
Other Operating Expenses 

Total Operating Expenses 

Excess of Revenues (Under) Over Expenses 

See notes to Intercollegiate Athletics Program 
Statement of Revenues and Expenses. 

Footban Men's Basketball 

259,374 129,704 
725,000 60,000 
503,623 738 

206,350 766 
354,840 154,095 

2,049,187 345,303 

1,637,995 445,732 
135,000 76,000 

1,323,320 677,193 

118,524 8 1,370 
492,022 22 1,267 
245,379 51,718 
96,505 161,884 

99,743 5,100 
90,576 47,270 

4,239,064 1.767,534 

12,189,877) p ,422,231) 
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Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Women's BasketbaU Other Seorts Non-Program SeecJfic TotaJ 

28,634 4 ,955 422,667 
15,000 800,000 

1,523 143,583 1,251,286 1,900,753 

14 ,600,192 14,600,192 
(42,26 1) (42,261) 
43,006 43,006 

1,311 ,640 1,311,640 
20,125 20,125 

68 207,184 
162,403 671,338 

2,980 2,980 
7,384 2 18 ,803 226, 187 

45,225 176,047 17,548,049 20,163,811 

383,24 1 3,014,745 253,434 5,735,147 
6 ,500 5,000 222,500 

505,429 1,679,151 4,185,093 
3,40 1,800 3,401,800 

52,083 82,008 333,985 
129 ,958 1,127,306 1,970 ,553 
37,873 378,178 284,111 997,259 
88,044 134,383 7,938 488,754 

261 261 176,873 177,395 

47,766 82,846 130,612 
151 ,850 151 ,850 
68,764 68,764 

176,575 176,575 
4 ,763 25,384 30,147 

26,860 13 1,703 
35,536 98.792 860,183 1,132,357 

1,238,925 6 ,599.2 13 5.489,758 19,334,494 

p,193,700) 16,423,166) 12,058,291 829,317 



Youngstown State University 

Notes to Intercollegiate Athletics Program 
Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Note 1 - Contributions 

Individual contributions of moneys, goods, or services received directly by the 
Institution's intercollegiate athletics program from any affiliated or outside organization, 
agency, or individuals (e.g., contributions by corporate sponsors) that constitute 10 
percent or more of all contributions received for intercollegiate athletics during the year 
ended June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Source of Funds, Goods, and Services Value 
Penguin Club Pledge $ 200,000 

Note 2 - Intercollegiate Athletics-Related Assets 

Property and equipment are recorded at cost or, if donated, the fair value at the time of 
donation. Expense for maintenance and repairs is charged to current expense as 
incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method. No depreciation is 
recorded on land. Expenses for major renewals and betterments that extend the useful 
lives of the assets are capitalized. Estimated service lives range from 5 to 40 years 
depending on class. 

The current year capitalized additions and deletions to facilities during the year ended 
June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Construction in Progress 

Equipment 
Buildings 
Building Improvements 
Improvements - Other 

Total Athletics Facilities 

Other Institutional Facilities 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Current Year 

Additions 

132,439 $ 

252,255 

Current Year 

Deletions 

49,819 

384 694 =$ =======49===81==9 

13,084,953 $ 397,1 87 

The total estimated book values of property, plant, and equipment, net of depreciation, of 
the Institution as of June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Athletically Related Property, Plant, and Equipment Balance 

Institution's Total Property, Plant, and Equipment Balance 

16 

Estimated Book 

Value 

$ 20,730,558 

$ 225,004,275 



Youngstown State University 

Notes to Intercollegiate Athletics Program 
State1nent of Revenues and Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2022 

Note 3 - Intercollegiate Athletics-Related Debt 

The annual debt service and debt outstanding for the Institution as of June 30, 2022 are 
as follows: 

Athletically Related Facilities 

Institution's Total 

$ 

$ 

Annual Debt 

Service 

Debt 

Outstanding 

82,846 $ 2,328,834 

2,398,673 $ 67,436,575 

The repayment schedule for all outstanding intercolleg iate athletics debt maintained by 
the Institution for the years ending June 30 is as follows: 

Total 

Intercollegiate 

Athletics Debt 

2023 $ 
2024 8,713 
2025 161 ,396 
2026 204,546 
2027 2 12,429 

2028-2034 1,741,750 

$ 2,328,834 

Note 4 - Restricted and Endowment and Plant Funds 

During the year, the Institution had no significant change in loan, endowment, or plant 
funds related to intercollegiate athletics. 

In addition, at June 30, 2022, the Institution had $66,596 of endowments and $0 in 
pledges receivable dedicated to the sole support of athletics not reported in the 
Statement. The athletics department's fund balance is $2,425,298 at June 30, 2022. 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To Management and the Board of Trustees 
WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio 

Report on the Audits of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

Plante & M oran, PLLC 
Suite 100 

250 S. High Street 
Columbus. 01-1 43215 

Tel: 614.849.3000 

Fax: 6 14 .22 t.3535 
plantemoran.com 

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of WYSU-FM Youngstown State 
University Radio (the "Station"), a department of Youngstown State University, as of and for the years ended 
June 30, 2022 and 2021 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise WYSU-FM 
Youngstown State University Radio's basic financial statements, as listed in the table of contents. 

In our opinion , the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fai rly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the business-type activities of WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio as of June 30, 
2022 and 2021 and the changes in its financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
required to be independent of the Station and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the 
relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, the financial statements of the Station are intended to present 
the net position, changes in net position, and cash flows of only that portion of Youngstown State University's 
business-type activities that is attributable to the transactions of the Station. They do not purport to, and do not, 
present fairly the net position of Youngstown State University as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 or the changes in net 
position or the changes in cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Station's ability to continue as a going concern 
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise 
substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 



To the Board of Trustees 
WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audits of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and, therefore, is not 
a guarantee that audits conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing audits in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audits. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audits in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Station's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Station's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that 
we identified during the audits. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information, as identified in the table of contents, be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management 
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in 
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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To the Board of Trustees 
WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 9, 2022 on 
our consideration of WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio's internal control over financial reporting and 
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

~ f ~' l'J.LC 

December 9, 2022 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

The Management' s Discussion and Analysis section of the WYSU-FM Youngstown State 
University Radio (WYSU-FM or the Station) Financial Report presents an unaudited discussion 
and analys is of the financial performance of the Station, a non-commercia l public radio station 
operated by Youngstown State University (the Uni versity or YSU), during the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2022 with comparati ve information fo r the fi scal years ended June 30, 2021 and June 30, 
2020. This discussion has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with 
the financial statements and the accompanying notes that fo llow. 

Introduction 

The University operates WYSU-FM, a 50,000-watt radio station that serves the Mahoning and 
Shenango Valley regions with fine arts, news, and information programming from its studios in 
Melnick Hall. WYSU-FM functions as a department of the Division of Univers ity Relations at the 
University. The Station broadcasts a mix of news and classical music programs on its main analog 
channel , HD I (digital) channel, and an internet stream. WYSU-FM also broadcasts classical music 
on its HD2 channel and second internet stream. The Station broadcasts at 88.5 MHz in 
Youngstown, Ohio, 90.1 MHz in Ashtabu la, Ohio, and 89.7 MHz in New Wilmington, 
Pennsylvania. 

WYSU-FM is a non-commercial, listener-supported, community-based public radio station 
committed to being the region's leading somce fo r quality programming. It provides trusted in­
depth news, engaging conversation, and music that stimulates the mind and spirit. As one of YSU 's 
most visible daily representatives to the community, WYSU-FM also strives to be a va luable 
ambassador to the community, providing a fo rum to promote the artistic and intellectual activities 
of the University. 

Since 1969, public radio WYSU 88.5 FM has been northeast Ohio's and western Pennsylvania' s 
somce for the best in news and information programming, music, and entertainment. WYSU-FM 
is a chai1er National Public Radio (NPR) affi liate station. Every week thousands of listeners tune 
to the Station fo r its ec lectic and innovative non-commercial program schedule including engaging 
news and in formation, great entertainment, and superb classical, jazz, and fo lk music - together 
providing a provocative, cu lturally rich, and inte llectually stimulating journey for WYSU-FM 
li steners. 

On March 11 , 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a respiratory disease 
caused by a new coronavirus a pandemic, now known as COVID-19. In response to the COVID-
19 pandemic, governments have taken preventative or protective actions, such as temporary 
closures of non-essential businesses and "shelter-at-home" guidelines for individuals. As a result, 
the global economy has been negatively affected, and the Station's operations were also impacted. 
Due to the "shelter-at-home" guidelines during April and May 2020, the Station expanded its 
remote operations capabilities. In addition, many events were cancelled or temporarily postponed 
until the "shelter-at-home" guidelines were reduced or removed, which resulted in lost fundraising 
and underwriting revenues for the Station for the years ended June 30, 2022, June 30, 202 1 and 
June 30, 2020. In response, the Station instituted measures to reduce personnel expenses, including 
temporary layoffs, permanent layoffs, furloughs and pay reductions and a reduction in operating 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

expenses. To offset the financ ial impact and losses incurred by the Station due to the disruption 
caused by COYI D-19 and to defray COYI D- 19 expenses, the Station rece ived grants and other 
relief primarily authorized through the Corona vi rus Aid, Re lief, and Economic Security (CARES) 
Act, the Coronavirus Relief & Recovery Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA), and the 
American Rescue Plan Act of 202 1. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

Using the Financial Statements 

The Station's financial report includes three basic financial statements: the Statement of Net 
Position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of 
Cash Flows. These financial statements are prepared in accordance with the financial reporting 
format required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 's (GASB) Statements No. 34, 
Basic Financial Statements and Management 's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local 
Governments and No. 35, Basic Financial Statements and Management 's Discussion and Analysis 
for Public Colleges and Universities, as amended. These statements establish standards for 
external financial reporting for public colleges and uni versities and require that financial 
statements be presented on a basis to focus on the financial condition of the Station, the results of 
operations, and cash fiows of the Station as a whole. 

During fiscal year 20 18, the Station adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Postemp/oyment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB) and during fi scal year 20 15, 
the Station adopted GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions -
an amendment of GASE Statement No. 27. These statements significantly revised accounting fo r 
pension/OPEB costs and assets/liabilities. 

Prior to GASBs 68 and 75, the accounting for pension/OPEB costs, was focused on a funding 
approach, which limited pension/OPEB costs to contributions annually required by law, which 
may or may not be sufficient to fully fund each pension plan's net pension/OPEB asset/liability. 

Under standards required by these statements, the net pension/OPEB asset/liability equals the 
Station's proportionate share of each pension/OPEB plan' s collective present value of estimated 
future pension/OPEB benefits attributable to employees' past service minus plan assets avai lable 
to pay these benefits. Pension/OPEB obligations, whether funded or unfunded, are part of the 
"employment exchange" - that is, the employee is trading his or her labor in exchange for wages, 
benefits, and the promise of a future pension and OPEB. The unfunded po1t ions of these 
pension/OPEB promises are a present obligation, part of a bargained-for benefit to the employee, 
and are rep01ted by the Station as liabilities since the benefit of the exchange was rece ived. 

The nature of Ohio' s statewide pension systems and state law governing those systems requires 
additional explanation in order to properly understand the information presented in these 
statements. The Station is not responsible for certain key fac tors affecting the balance of these 
liabilities. In Ohio, the employee shares the obligation of funding pension benefits with the 
employer. Both employer and employee contribution rates are capped by the State statute. A 
change in these caps requires action by both Houses of the General Assembly and approval of the 
Governor. Benefit provisions are also determined by State statute. The employee enters the 
employment exchange with the knowledge that the employer' s promise is limited not by contract 
but by law. The employer enters the exchange also knowing that there is a specific, legal limit to 
its contribution to the pension system. In Ohio, there is no lega l means to enforce the unfunded 
liability of the pension system against the public employer. State law operates to mitigate the 
obligation of the public employer to the employee because all parties enter the employment 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

exchange with notice as to the law. The pension system is responsible for the administration of 
the plan. 

Most long-term liabilities have set repayment schedules or, in the case of compensated absences 
(i.e. sick and vacation leave), are satisfied through paid time-off or termination payments. There 
is no repayment schedule for the net pension/OPEB assets/liabilities. Changes in pension/OPEB 
benefi ts, contribution rates, and return on investments affect the balances of the net pension/OPEB 
assets/I iabi I ities, but are outside the control of the pub I ic employer. In the event that contributions, 
investment returns, and other changes are insufficient to keep up with required payments, State 
statute does not assign/identify the responsible party for the unfunded portion. Due to the unique 
nature of how the net pension/OPEB assets/liabilities are satisfied , these assets and liab ilities are 
separately identified within the noncurrent asset and long-term liability sections of the Statement 
of Net Position. 

In accordance with GASBs 68 and 75, the Station' s statements, prepared on an accrual basis of 
accounting, include an annua l pension/OP EB expense for the proportionate share of each pension 
plan' s change in net pension/OPEB asset/ liability. 

Overall key presentation elements of the financial statements include: 

• Assets and liabilities are categorized as either current or noncurrent. Current assets and 
liabilities will be consumed or fulfill ed within one year. 

• Revenues and expenses are categorized as either operating or non-operating. Significant 
recurring sources of the Station' s revenues, including the general appropriation from the 
University and membership revenue are considered non-operating, as defined by GASB 
Statement No. 35. 

• Capital assets are reported net of accumulated depreciation. 

The Statement of Net Position 

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the Station at the end of the fiscal 
year and includes all assets (current and noncurrent), deferred outflows o f resources, liabilities 
(current and noncurrent), de ferred inflows of resources, and net position of the Station. Current 
assets are classified as such if they are ava ilab le to satisfy current liabilities, which are generally 
defined as being due within one year of the date of the Statement of Net Position. Net position is 
one indicator of the financial condition of the Station, while the change in net position is an 
indicator of whether the overa ll financial condition has improved or worsened during the year. 
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wvsu .. FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

A summarized comparison of the Station's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, 
deferred inflows of resources, and net pos ition at June 30, 2022, 202 1, and 2020 fo llows: 

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 
Assets 

Current assets $ 1,932,895 $ 1.923. 766 $ 1,68 1.535 
Noncurrent assets 

Capita l assets, net 103,465 12 1.412 153,236 
Other assets 309,052 326,672 221,222 

Total Noncurrent assets 4 12,5 17 448,084 374,458 
Total Assets 2,345,412 2,37 1,850 2,055,993 

Deferred Out nows of Resources 67,296 49,715 130,9 19 

Liabil ities 
Current liabi lities 39,925 40,761 53,557 
Noncurrent liabilities 223,708 388,089 1,061 ,453 

Total Liabi li ties 263,633 428,850 1, 11 5,010 

Deferred ln0ows or Resources 325,410 349,636 223, 198 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 103,465 12 1.4 12 153,236 
Restricted 274,847 3 17.286 237,495 
Unrestricted 1,445,353 1,204,38 1 457,973 

Total Net Position $ 1,823,665 $ 1,643,079 $ 848,704 

Total assets, consisting primari ly of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, pledges 
receivable, investments, and capital assets, decreased $26,438 or I% from fisca l year 2021 to fi scal 
year 2022. Current assets increased $9, 129 or 0.47% between fi scal year 202 1 and fi scal year 
2022 primarily due to an increase in cash and cash equivalents. Noncurrent assets decreased 
$35,567 or 8% from fi scal year 202 1 to fisca l year 2022. The decrease was attributed to a 
combination of a decrease in endowment investments of $43,678 due to unfavorable market 
environment in fi scal year 2022 and a decrease in net capital assets of $ 17,947 which represents 
the recording of fi sca l year 2022 depreciation offset by an inc rease in the net OPEB asset of 
$26,058. 

Total assets, consisting primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, pledges 
receivable, investments, and capital assets, increased $3 15,857 or 15% from fiscal year 2020 to 
fi scal year 2021. Current assets increased $242,23 1 or 14% between fi sca l year 2020 and fisca l 
year 202 1 primarily due to an increase in cash and cash equivalents, the resul t of $ 148,564 received 
from the CPB Cares Act grant and a $ 102,928 bequest from an estate. Noncurrent assets increased 
$73,626 or 20% from fisca l year 2020 to fi scal year 202 1. The increase was attributed to a 
combination of an increase in endowment investments of $62,699 due to a favorable market 
environment in fiscal year 202 1 and the recognition of a net OPEB asset of $42,75 1 offset by a 
decrease in net capital assets of $3 1,824 which represents the recording of fi scal year 202 1 
depreciation. 

8 



WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

See Note 2 for additiona l in formation on cash and cash equiva lents , Note 3 for investments, and 
Note 4 for capital assets. 

Deferred outflows of resources represent the consumption of resources that are applicable to a 
future repo1ting period, but do not require fu rther exchange of goods o r services; whereas deferred 
inflows of resources represent the acquis ition of resources that are applicable to a future reporting 
period. The fol lowing table summarizes balances at : 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Related to pension 
Related to OPEB 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred In flows of Resources 
Related to pension 
Related to OPEB 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 

June 30, 2022 
$ 65,605 

1,69 1 
$ 67,296 

June 30, 2022 
$ 248,059 

77,35 1 
$ 325,4 10 

June 30, 202 1 June 30, 2020 
$ 28,697 $ 65,676 

2 1,0 18 65,243 
$ 49,7 15 $ 130,919 

June 30, 202 1 June 30, 2020 
$ 195,976 $ 151 ,759 

153,660 71,439 
$ 349,636 $ 223, 198 

Inc luded in deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of reso urces are items relating to 
pensions and OPEB. Certain e lements impacting the change in the net pension/OPES 
assets/ liabilities have a longer-term perspecti ve than the current year, therefore, to reduce vo latili ty 
these e lements are amortized over a c losed period o f specified duration. These inc lude differences 
between expected and actua l experi ence, changes o f assumptions, net differences between 
projected and actua l earnings o f investments, and changes in the proportionate share of 
contributions . These e lements can be re fl ected as e ither a deferred outflow of resources or a 
deferred inflow of resources. 

Deferred outflows of resources increased $ 17,58 1 or 35% from fi scal year 202 I to fi scal year 2022. 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pension increased $36,908 or 129% primarily due a 
$24,236 inc rease in the changes in assumptions re lated to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement 
System (OPERS) plan as we ll as a$ I 0,009 increase in the differences between expected and actua l 
experience re lated to the OPE RS plan. Deferred outflows o f resources re lated to OPEB decreased 
$ 19,327 or 92% prirnari ly d ue to a $2 1,0 I 6 decrease in the changes in assumptions related to the 
OPERS plan. 

Deferred inflows of resources decreased $24,226 or 7% from fi scal year 202 1 to fi scal year 2022. 
Deferred inflows of reso urces related to pension increased $52,083 or 27% due to a $9 1,885 
increase in the net d ifference between projected and actua l earnings on pension plan investments 
offset by a $28,442 decrease in change in proportionate share o f contributions to the OPE RS plan 
and a $ I I ,360 decrease in the diffe rences between expected and actua l experience. Deferred 
inflows of resources re lated to OPEB decreased $76,309 or 50 % due to a $4 1,413 decrease in 
changes in assumptions, a $28, 143 decrease in the differences between expected and actual 
experience and a $ 16,788 decrease in the change in proportionate share o f contributions related to 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

the OPERS plan offset by a $ I 0,035 increase in the net difference between projected and actual 
earnings on OPEB investments related to the OPERS plan. 

Deferred outflows of resources decreased $8 1,204 or 62% from fi scal year 2020 to fisca l year 
2021. Deferred outflows of resources related to pension decreased $36,979 or 56% primarily due 
to a $32,016 decrease in the changes in assumptions related to the Ohio Public Employees 
Retirement System (OPERS) plan. Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB decreased 
$44,225 or 68% primarily due to a $44, 139 decrease in the changes in assumptions related to the 
OPERS plan. 

Deferred inflows of resources increased $126,438 or 57% from fi scal year 2020 to fi sca l year 202 1. 
Deferred inflows of resources related to pension increased $44,2 17 or 29% primarily due to a 
$2 1,62 1 increase in the net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan 
investments, a $ 15,09 1 increase in change in proportionate share of contributions to the OPERS 
plan and a $7,506 increase in the differences between expected and actual experience. Deferred 
inflows of resources related to OPEB increased $82,22 1 or I 15% due to a $69,267 increase in 
changes in assumptions related to the OPE RS plan and a $ 10,209 increase in change in 
proportionate share of contributions to the OPE RS plan. 

See Note 6 for additional in formation on employee benefit plans. 

Total liabilities consisting of accounts payable, payroll liabilities, unearned revenue, compensated 
absences, net pension liability, and net OPEB liability decreased $165,2 17 or 39% from fiscal year 
2021 to fiscal year 2022 and was primarily due to a decrease in the net pension liabi lity of$ I 66, 183 
or48%. 

Total liabilities consisting of accounts payable, payroll liabilities, unearned revenue, compensated 
absences, net pension liabi li ty, and net OPES liabi li ty decreased $686,160 or 62% from fiscal year 
2020 to fiscal year 202 1 and was primarily due to a decrease in the net pension liability of $411 ,635 
or I 00%, a decrease in the net pension liability of $238,526 or 41 %, a decrease in compensated 
absences of $23,203 or 38% and a decrease in accounts payable of $ 19,507 or 85%. 

See Note 5 for additional in formation on compensated absences and Note 6 for information on 
employee benefit plans. 

Net position represents the residual interest in the Station's assets after deferred outflows of 
resources are added, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources are deducted. The fo llowing 
is a recap of total net position segregating the unrestricted net position relating to the impact of the 
GASBs 68 and 75. 

10 



WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 
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June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 

Net investment in capital assets $ 103,465 $ 121,4 12 $ 153.236 

Restricted - nonexpendable 108,153 108,153 108,153 

Restricted - expendable 166,694 209, 133 129,342 

Unresn·icted 1,8 18,316 1,811 ,392 1,550,254 

Total net position without GASBs 68 and 75 2,196,628 2,250,090 1,940,985 

GASB68 (366,112) (5 17,120) (674,450) 

GASB 75 (6,85 1) (89,891) (417,831) 

Total Net Position $ 1,823,665 $ 1,643,079 $ 848,704 

Overall, the Station's tota l net position increased $ 180,586 or 11 % from $ 1,643,079 at June 30, 
202 1 to $ 1,823,665 at June 30, 2022. This was primarily due to an increase of $240,972 in 
unrestricted net pos ition. Exclud ing net position attributed to GASBs 68 and 75, net position 
decreased $53,462 or 2% from $2,250,090 at June 30, 202 1 to $2, 196,628 at June 30, 2022. The 
net investment in capital assets consists of equipment net of accumulated depreciation. The 
$17,947 or 15% decrease from fi sca l year 202 1 to fiscal year 2022 was due to current year 
depreciation expense. Restricted nonexpendable net position consists pri marily of endowment 
funds held by the University in the name of the Station. Changes in th is category are driven by 
additions or deductions to the endowment corpus. During fi scal year 2022, there were no changes. 
Restricted expendable net position is subject to externally imposed restrictions governing their use. 
Changes in th is category are due to the timing of revenues and expenses in fu nds provided by 
donors and grantors. Restr icted expendable net position decreased $42,439 or 20% primarily due 
to the allocation of unrealized investment losses in the Station·s endowment fund. Unrestricted net 
position is not subject to external ly imposed restrictions and is designated for future operations. 
Unrestricted net position increased $6,924 or 0.38% from fi scal year 202 1 to fisca l year 2022. 

Overall, the Station's total net position increased $794,375 or 94% from $848,704 at June 30, 2020 
to $1,643,079 at June 30, 202 1. This was primarily due to an increase of $746,408 in unrestricted 
net position. Excluding net positi on attributed to GASBs 68 and 75, net position increased 
$309, I 05 or 16% fro m $1,940,985 at June 30, 2020 to $2,250,090 at June 30, 202 1. The net 
investment in capital assets consists of equ ipment net of accumulated depreciation. The $3 1,824 
or 2 1 % decrease from fisca l year 2020 to fiscal year 202 1 was due to current year deprec iation 
expense. Restricted nonexpendable net position consists primarily of endowment funds held by 
the University in the name of the Station. Changes in this category are driven by additions or 
deductions to the endowment corpus. During fi scal year 2021, there were no changes. Restricted 
expendable net position is subject to externally imposed restrictions govern ing their use. Changes 
in th is category are due to the timing of revenues and expenses in funds prov ided by donors and 
grantors. Restricted expendable net position increased $79,791 or 62% primarily due to the 
allocation of unrealized investment gains in the Station ' s endowment fund. Unrestricted net 
position is not subject to externally imposed restrictions and is des ignated for future operations. 
Unrestricted net position increased $26 1,138 or 17% from fiscal year 2020 to fi scal year 202 1 
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primarily due to an excess of membership revenue over expenses and federal appropriations 
received due to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

These statements present the operating results and the non-operating revenues and expenses of the 
Station. Operating revenues are generated by an annual Community Service Grant (a portion of 
which is restricted) from the Corporation for Public Broadcasting (CPB) and an annual grant from 
the Broadcast Educational Media Commiss ion (BEMC), which is administered by the eTech Ohio 
Commission. In addition, in-kind support is received from BEMC and includes support for 
transmission of Radio Reading Service Programming. Operating revenues also include 
contributions from area businesses (program underwriting). Operating expenses are incurred to 
vendors and employees fo r providing goods or services fo r the overall operations of the Station. 
Net non-operating revenues include federa l appropriations, the general appropriation from the 
University, donated facilities and administrative support from the Uni versity, membership 
revenue, net revenue from fund rai sing, private gifts, and net investment income. Federal 
appropriations include COVID-19 relief funding from the CPB and the COVID-1 9 Higher 
Education Emergency Relief Fund - Institutional Portion. 

A summary of the Station's revenues, expenses, and changes in net position fo llows: 

Total Operating Revenues 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Loss 

Net Non-operating Revenues 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position at Beginning of the Year 

Net Position at End of the Year 

June 30, 2022 June 30, 202 1 June 30, 2020 

$ 4 11 ,184 $ 371,228 $ 411 ,023 

1,069,547 583,260 1,671,087 

(658,363) (2 12,032) (1,260,064) 

838,949 1,006,407 1,076,44 1 

180,586 794,375 (183,623) 

1,643,079 848,704 1,032,327 

$ 1,823,665 $ 1,643,079 $ 848,704 

The Station's total operating revenues increased $39,956 or 11 % from fiscal year 2021 to fi scal 
year 2022. The increase was primarily the result of an increase of $36,282 in revenue from in-kind 
contributions. 

The Station's total operating revenues decreased $39,795 or I 0% from fi scal year 2020 to fisca l 
year 202 1. The decrease was primarily the result of a decrease of $20,013 in revenue from 
underwriting contracts due to the im pact of the COVI 0-19 pandemic and a decrease of in-kind 
contributions of $12,624. 

The fo llowing is a recap of total operating expenses with the impact of the GASBs 68 and 75 
pension expense accruals segregated. 
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June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2020 

Program Services $ 776,940 $ 678,597 $ 720,041 

Support Services 526,655 389,933 7 16,449 

Operating Expenses without GASBs 68 and 75 accruals 1,303,595 1,068,530 1,436,490 

GASB 68 pension expense acc ruals ( 15 1,008) ( 157,330) 11 ,062 

GASB 75 OPEB expense acc rual (83,040) (327,940) 223,535 

Total Operating Expenses $ 1,069,547 $ 583,260 $ 1,67 1,087 

Exc luding the impact of GASBs 68 and 75, total operating expenses increased $235,065 or 22% 
from fi sca l year 2021 to fi sca l year 2022. Program services increased $98,343 or 14% primarily 
due to increases in programming and production expense and broadcasting expense related to the 
increase in in-kind support fro m BEMC. In addition, the increase is attributed to an increase in 
program info rmation expense due to hiring an employee at the end of fi scal year 202 1 to fill the 
program info rmation position which was left vacant in March 202 1. Support services increased 
$ 136,722 or 35% primarily attributed to an increase in management and general expenses related 
to the increase institutional support fro m the University. 

Pension expense attributed to GASB 68 increased $6,322 from ($ 157,330) in fisca l year 2021 to 
($ 151,008) in fi scal year 2022; whereas OPES expense attributed to GASB 75 increased $244,900 
from ($327,940) in fiscal year 202 1 to ($83,040) in fiscal year 2022. These expenses are the resu lt 
of changes in the deferred outflows/inflows and liabilities/assets related to pension/OPES. The 
Station has no contro l over the factors affecting these changes. 

Excluding the impact of GASSs 68 and 75, total operating expenses decreased $367,960 or 26% 
from fi sca l year 2020 to fi scal year 202 1. Program serv ices decreased $4 1,444 or 6% primarily 
due to the shift of the broadcast engineering position from full-time status to part-time status. 
Support services decreased $326,5 16 or 46% primarily attributed to planned staff reductions due 
to COVID-1 9 in fi scal year 202 1, which included the elimination of a full-time position primari ly 
utilized fo r underwriting and fundra ising acti vities and a decrease in institutional support from the 
University. 

Pension expense attributed to GASS 68 decreased $168,392 from $ 1 1,062 in fi scal year 2020 to 
($ 157,330) in fiscal year 202 1; whereas OPES expense attributed to GASS 75 decreased $55 1,475 
fro m $223,535 in fi scal year 2020 to ($327,940) in fisca l year 202 1. These expenses are the result 
of changes in the deferred outflows/inflows and liabilities/assets related to pension/OPES. Due to 
the pension asset income pick up in fi sca l year 202 1, Program in formation expenses and Traffic 
and continuity expenses included in Program Services expenses as well as Underwriting expenses 
included in Support Services expenses are all presenting as negative expenses on the Statements 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. The Station has no control over the factors 
affecting these changes. 

See Note 6 for additional in formation on pension plans and other post-employment benefits 
(OPES) and Note 9 for more in formation about the COVID-1 9 pandemic. 
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Total net non-operating revenues decreased $167,458 or 17% from fiscal year 202 1 to fisca l year 
2022. The Station did not receive federal appropriations in fiscal year 2022 resulting in a decrease 
of $166,757 or I 00%. The general appropriation from the University increased $77,027 or 24% 
between fi scal year 202 1 and fiscal year 2022, primarily due to payroll increases resulting from all 
positions being fully-staffed in fiscal year 2022 compared to fiscal year 202 1 as well as a vacation 
and sick leave payout to an employee due to retirement. Donated facil ities and administrative 
support from the University increased $ 1 14,079 or 136% due to an increase in institutional support 
from the University, the resu lt of an increase in total operating expenses in fiscal year 2022. 
Membership income increased $24,66 1 or I 0%, the result of two, month-long fundraising 
initiatives. The Station did not receive any bequests or large gifts in fiscal year 2022 as compared 
to fisca l year 2021 resulting in a decrease in private gifts of $110,928 or 99%. Investment income, 
net of investment expense decreased $ I 05,540 or 145% which is attributed to the recognition of 
unrealized losses in the Station's endowment fund due to unfavorab le market conditions. 

Total net non-operating revenues decreased $70,034 or 7% from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 
202 1. Federal appropriations increased $9 1,757 or 122% primarily due to receiving CARES Act 
funding from the CPB. The general appropriation from the University decreased $85,426 or 2 1 % 
between fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 202 1, primarily due to payroll reductions resulting from 
an employee resigning from their position. Donated facilities and administrative support from the 
Un iversity decreased $184,795 or 69% due to a decrease in institutional suppo11 from the 
Un iversity, the result of a decrease in total operating expenses in fiscal year 202 1. Private gifts 
increased $67,789 or 154% and included a$ I 02,928 bequest from an estate and a $10,000 pri vate 
gift. Investment gains, net of investment expense increased $57,7 19 or 384% which is attributed 
to the recognition of unrealized gains in the Station's endowment fund due to favorab le market 
conditions. 
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wvsu .. FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONT.) 

Economic Factors for the Future 

Despite cha I lenges from the ongoing effects of the COVI D-19 pandemic as well as the current 
economic environment, the Station is well-positioned to continue its favorable financial condition. 
As one of Youngstown State Un iversity·s most visible campus and community entities, WYSU­
FM reaches over 30,000 weekly listeners who spend 12 million hours annually with the Station. 
The broadcast coverage area includes eight counties in Ohio and three in Pennsylvania, as we ll as 
many other listeners throughout the country and around the world through its streaming services 
and smartphone applications. WYSU remains dedicated to its goals of providing high quality and 
reliable service, expanding its audience, developing and securing external fund ing sources and 
representing the YSU community positively. The Station continues to work to enhance and expand 
its commitment to diversity, equity and inclusion. With the conti nued support of the University's 
Board of Trustees, administration, and dedicated staff, as well as the generous loyalty of the 
Station's listener-members, the support of businesses, non-profit organizations, and foundations, 
WYSU-FM maintains stabi lity during challenging economic times. 

Continued shi fts in market trends exacerbated by the pandemic and the downturn of the regional 
economy have led to an increased focus on underwriting and membership. Decreases in 
underwriting support due to the loss of two significant legacy station underwriters coupled with 
the increased popularity in digital advertising and substantial reductions in advertising rates 
charged by commercia l radio stations in the market have made it difficult fo r the underwriting 
program to remain competitive. The Station plans to continue to seek opportunities to diversify 
network and local programming across all platforms to appeal to the current core audiences and 
attract a more dive rse and younger audience. In order to address these goals, WYSU became a 
member of The Ohio Newsroom (TON), a formal co llaboration of Ohio's ex isting network of 
public radio stations and newsrooms whose mission is to create a sustainable model for offering 
Ohio-focused news coverage. The station coordinator became an active member of both the 
underwriting committee and the marketing committee of TON. The underwriting committee of 
TON seeks to establish a statewide network of underwriters that will both make TON sustainable, 
and provide incremental underwriting revenue to the participating stations. 

The Station recognizes the need to continuously enhance, upgrade and develop new technologies 
as well as bu ild brand awareness. Major projects in the planning phase include rebuilding the 
Station's website, upgrading the broadcast automation system and making s igni ficant repairs to 
the primary antenna. The Station plans to increase marketing endeavors with a focus on TON, 
local news partnerships, the new Policies and Politics podcast and network news programming. 
In addition, the expansion of the student work program including the utilization of student board 
operators on the air will continue WYSU' s goal to provide lifelong learning opportunities to not 
only its listeners but also to YSU students. Completion of these endeavors wi ll allow the Station 
to continue to help li steners in their li fe- long learning pursuits, satisfy their intellectual curios ity, 
make more informed decisions, lead more fu lfilling lives, become better and more involved 
citizens, and help make northeast Ohio and western Pennsylvania a better place to live. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION AT JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 
ASSETS 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,9 18,160 $ 1,904,033 
Interest receivable 292 174 
Accounts receivable (net of allowance of 

$0 in 2022 and $0 in 2021) 4, 11 6 4,928 
Pledges receivable (net of allowance of 

$1, 174 in 2022 and $2,345 in 202 1) 10,327 14,63 1 
Total Current Assets 1,932,895 1,923,766 

Noncurrent Assets 
Endowment investments 240,243 283,921 
Net OPEB asset 68,809 42,75 1 
Capital assets, net 103,465 121,4 12 

Total Noncurrent Assets 4 12,517 448,084 
Total Assets 2,345,412 2,371,850 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred outflows related to pension 65,605 28,697 
Deferred outflows related to OPEB 1,69 1 21,018 

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 67,296 49,71 5 

LlABI LITI ES 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable 3,726 3,464 
Payroll liabilities 18,911 18,614 
Unearned revenue 7,642 12,41 I 
Compensated absences 9,646 6,272 

Total Current Liabilities 39,925 40,761 
Noncurrent Liabilities 

Compensated absences 40,050 38,248 
Net pension liability 183,658 349,841 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 223,708 388,089 
Total Liabilities 263,633 428,850 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred inflows related to pension 248,059 195,976 
Deferred inflows related to OPEB 77,351 153,660 

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 325,410 349,636 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 103,465 12 1,4 12 
Restricted, nonexpendable 108,153 108,153 
Restricted, expendable - grant and endowment 166,694 209, 133 
Unrestricted 1,445,353 1,204,381 

Total Net Position $ 1,823,665 $ 1,643,079 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 202 1 

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 
REVENUES 

Operating Revenues 
Corporation for Public Broadcasting grant $ 126,402 $ 120,557 
In-kind contributions 174,064 137,782 
Broadcast Education Media Commission grant 33 ,570 31 ,350 
Underwriting revenue 77, 148 81 ,539 

Total Operating Revenues 411 , 184 371 ,228 

EXPENSES 
Operating Expenses 

Program Services 
Programming and production 430,677 337,656 
Broadcasting 187,335 124,480 
Program informat ion 42,509 (7,966) 
Traffic and continuity 10,254 (1 ,466) 

Support Services 
Management and general 252,069 84,547 
Fund raising and membership development 43,289 11,580 

Underwriting 24, 155 (5,2 15) 
Clerical 61,3 12 7,820 
Depreciation 17,947 3 1,824 

Total Operating Expenses 1,069,547 583,260 

Operating Loss (658,363) (2 12,032) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Federal appropriations 166,757 
General appropriation from the Un iversity 40 1,139 324, 112 

Donated facil ities and admin istrative support 
from the University 198,133 84,054 

Membership revenue 27 1,723 247,062 

Private gifts 750 11 1,678 
Investment income, net of investment expense (32,796) 72,744 

Net Nonoperating Revenues 838,949 1,006,407 
Change in Net Position 180,586 794,375 

NET POSITION 
Net Position at Beginning of the V car 1,643,079 848,704 
Net Position at Encl of the Vear $ 1.823.665 $ 1.643 .079 

See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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WYSU-FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Corporation for Public Broadcasting grant $ 126,402 $ 120,557 
Broadcast Educational Media Commission grant 33,570 3 1,350 
Underwriting support 73, 16 1 80,92 1 
Payments Lo suppliers (412, 154) (374, 128) 

Payments 10 employees (365,885) (333,865) 
Payments for benefits ( 129,676) ( 14 1.948) 

Total Cash Flows Used in Ope rating Activities (674.582) (617, 11 3) 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

Federal appropriations 166,757 
General appropriation from the University 40 1. 139 324, 11 2 
Membership receipts 276.057 247,582 
Private gifis 750 111 ,678 

Total Cash Flows Provided by Noncapital Financing Activ ities 677,946 850, 129 

Cash Flows from Investing Activ ities 

Interest on investments (32,9 15) 72,792 
Sale (purchase) of investments 43.678 (62,699) 

Total Cash Flows Provided by Investing Activ ities 10,763 10,093 

Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents 14, 127 243 ,109 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1.904,033 1.660.924 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Encl of Year $ 1.9 18. I 60 $ 1.904.033 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used in Operating Activ ities 

Operating loss $ (658,363) $ (2 12,032) 
Adjustments lo reconcile operating loss to net cash used in operating activities: 

Depreciation 17,947 3 1,824 
Donated facilities and administrative support from the University 198, 133 84,054 
Changes in assets and liabilit ies: 

Accounts receivable, net' 782 3 11 
Net OPEB asset (26,058) (42,751) 
Accounts payable, payro ll liabilit ies, compensated absences, and 

unearned revenue 967 (36,000) 
Net pension/OPES liabili ty ( 166, 183) (650,16 1) 
Deferred out flows-pension and OPEB ( 17,58 1) 8 1,204 
Deferred inflows-pension and OPEB (24.226) 126,438 

Net Cash Flows Used in Operating Activ ities $ (674.582) $ (617. 113) 

Sec accompanying notes to financial statements. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization and Basis of Presentation 

WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio (WYSU-FM or the Station) is operated as a 
department of the Division of University Relations at Youngstown State Uni versity (the Uni versity 
or YSU) and is subject to the policies established by the University's Board of Trustees. The 
Station repo11s annually to the Corporation fo r Public Broadcasting (CPB). 

The financial statements of the Station are intended to present the financial position, the changes 
in financial position and cash flows, of only that portion of the acti vities of Youngstown State 
University that is attributable to the transactions of the Station. They do not purport to, and do not 
present fairly the financial position of Youngstown State Uni versity as of June 30, 2022 and 202 1, 
and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows, for the years then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles genera ll y accepted in the United States of Ameri ca. 

The financial statements of the Station have been prepared in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the Government 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

As required by the GASB, resources are classified fo r accounting and reporting purposes into the 
fo llowing four net position categories: 

• Net investment in capital assets - Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced 
by outstand ing principal balances of debt attributab le to the acquisition, construction or 
improvement of those assets. 

• Restricted, nonexpendable - Resources subject to externally imposed stipul ations that they 
be maintained permanently by the Station. Such resources include the Stati on' s permanent 
endowment funds. 

• Restricted, expendable - Resources whose use by the Stati on is subject to externally 
imposed stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the Station pursuant to those 
stipulations or that expire by the passage of time. Such resources inc lude the restricted 
portion of the CPB's Rad io Community Service Grant, donations and endowment earnings. 

• Unrestricted - Resources that are not subject to externally imposed stipulations. 
Unrestricted resources may be designated for specific purposes by action of management, 
Board of Trustees or may otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside 
pa11ies. Substantially all unrestricted resources are designated fo r Station programs, 
initiatives and capital projects. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 202 1 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic resource 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The Station reports as a business-type 
activity, as defined by the GASB. Business-type activities are those that are fi nanced in whole or 
in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services. 

Cash and Cash Equi valents - The Station considers all highly liquid investments with an original 
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are stated at 
cost, which approximates fa ir value and exc ludes amounts restricted by board designation or 
whose use is limited. 

Investments - Investments are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices. Changes in 
unrealized gains (losses) on the carrying value of investments are reported as a component of 
investment income in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
Restricted investments are comprised of endowment corpus and related spending funds. 

Endowment Policy- Under Ohio law set forth in the Uni form Prudent Management of Institutional 
Funds Act (UPM IFA), as adopted in Ohio in 2009, the Board acts in a fiduciary capacity as trustee 
of its endowment funds. UPMIFA requires that the Board exercise its fiduciary duties prudently 
and consider both the charitable purposes and needs of the University and the purposes of the 
specific endowment regarding current expenditures and preservation of the purchasing power of 
the fu nds. The University Endowment Fund consists of 90 named funds, which includes the 
Station's endowment. Each named fund is assigned a number of shares in the University 
Endowment Fund based on the value of the gifts to that named fund. The University' s endowment 
spending policy states that annual distributions each fiscal year are set to 5% of the twelve-qua1ter 
average of the market value for the preceding twelve calendar quarters. In calculating the twelve­
quarter average, census dates of March 3 I, June 30, September 30, and December 31 fo r the 
previous three years shall be used. Distributions greater than the calculated amount require written 
justification and Board of Trustees' approval. 

Accounts Receivable - Accounts receivable consist of underwriting charges fo r various Station 
programs and amounts due from private sources in connection with reimbursement of allowable 
expenses under the applicable Station grants and contracts. Also included are gifts rece ived by the 
Youngstown State University Foundation (YSUF or Foundation) in the month of June on behalf 
of the Station, in accordance with a development services agreement between the University and 
the Foundation. Accounts are recorded net of allowance for uncollectible accounts. 

Pledges Receivab le - The Uni versity has a development serv ices agreement with the Foundation. 
As part of the agreement, non-fundraising pledges are recorded by the Foundation and payments 
on those pledges are collected by the Foundation and remitted to the Station on a monthly basis. 
Pledges receivable consist of transactions relating to fundraising activities. The Station receives 
pledges of financial support from corporations, foundations and individuals. Revenue is 
recognized when a pledge representing an unconditional promise to pay is received and all 
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WYSU·FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

e ligibility requirements have been met. In the absence of a conditional pledge, revenue is 
recognized when the gift is rece ived. Pledges are recorded net of an a llowance for uncollectible 
amounts and are discounted to net present value. 

Capital Assets - Capital assets are comprised of equipment and stated at cost or acqu isition value 
at date of gift. The capitalization threshold for equipment is $5,000. Depreciation is computed 
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the asset. The estimated useful life 
for equipment is 3 to 7 years. The antenna and tower are depreciated over IO years. 

When capital assets are so ld, or otherwise d isposed of, the carry ing value of such assets and any 
accumulated depreciation is removed from asset accounts and net investment in capital assets. The 
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the capital asset or 
materially extend the capital asset' s life are expensed when incurred. 

Unearned Revenue - Unearned revenue includes certain underwriting amounts received prior to 
the end of the fi scal year that relate to the subsequent accounting period. Unearned revenue at June 
30, 2022 and June 30, 202 1 were $7,642 and $ 12,4 11 , respective ly . 

Compensated Absences - Accumulated unpaid vacation and s ick leave benefits are recorded as 
required by the GASB. The Station uses the termination method to accrue s ick leave compensated 
absences on the Statement ofNet Pos ition. Station employees earn vacation and s ick leave benefits 
based, in pa1t, on length of service. Vacation pay is fully vested when earned. Upon separation 
from service, employees are paid accumulated vacation and s ick pay based upon the nature of the 
separation (death, retirement, or termination). Certain limitations have been placed on hours of 
vacation and s ick leave that employees may accumulate and carry over for payment at death, 
retirement or termination. Unused hours exceed ing these limitations are forfe ited. 

Deferred Outflows and Jnflows of Resources - Deferred outflows of resources represent the 
consumption of resources that are applicable to a future reporting period, but do not require further 
exchange of goods or services. Deferred inflows of resources represent the acquis ition of resources 
that are applicable to a future resource period. Deferred outflows and inflows of resources in the 
Station's financial statements relate to the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS) 
pension/OPEB plan. 

Pensions/OPEB - For purposes of measuring the net pension/OPEB asset/liabili ty, deferred 
outflows ofresources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions/OPEB, pension/OPEB 
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the pension/OPEB plans, and additions 
to/deductions from the ir fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by the pension/OPEB plan, which use the economic resources measurement focus and 
the full accrual basis of accounting. For this purpose, benefit payments ( including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 202 1 

Corporation for Public Broadcasting Community Service Grants - The Corporation for Public 
Broadcasting is a private, nonprofit grantmaking organization responsible for funding more than 1,000 
television and radio stations. CPB distributes annual Community Service Grants (CSGs) to quali fy ing 
public broadcasting entities. CSGs are used to augment the financial resources of public broadcasting 
entities and thereby to enhance the quality of programming and expand the scope of public broadcasting 
services. Each CSG may be expended over one or two federal fi scal years as described in the 
Communications Act, 47 United States Code Annotated, Section 396(k)(7). In any event, each grant must 
be expended within two years of the initial grant authorization. According to the Communications Act, 
funds may be used at the discretion of recipients for purposes relating primarily to production and 
acquisition of programming. Also, the grants may be used to sustain activities begun with CSGs awarded 
in prior years. Certain General Provisions must be satisfi ed in connection with application for and use of 
the grants to maintain eligibility and meet compliance requirements. These General Provisions pertain to 
the use of grant funds, record keeping, audits, financial reporting, mailing lists, and licensee status with the 
Federal Communications Commission. The CSGs are reported on the accompanying financial statements 
as increases in unrestricted net position and restricted, expendable net position. 

General Appropriation from the University - The general appropriation represents support from 
the University for salaries and operating expenses not provided through other sources. 

Donated Facilities and Administrati ve Support - Donated facilities and administrative support 
represent the Station's allocated amounts of institutional support and donated fac ilities and is 
recorded as non-operating revenue and expenses in the Statement of Revenue, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position. Administrati ve support is based on the Station' s pro-rata share of the 
University's total salaries, wages and administrati ve expenses. Donated facilities are the Station' s 
pro-rata share of the University' s total plant expenses along with calculated occupancy costs. 

Income Taxes - The Internal Revenue Service has ruled that the University' s income is generally 
exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 11 5 of the Internal Revenue Code. The 
University is subject to tax on unrelated business income. 

Measurement Focus and Financia l Statement Presentation - Operating revenues and expenses 
result from providing programming, production and broadcasting support fo r the Station. The 
principal operating revenues include two grants, one from the CPB and one from the Broadcast 
Educational Media Commission (BEMC), along with underwriting revenue from area businesses. 
Principal operating expenses include programming, production, broadcasting, fundraising and 
management services and support. The principal non-operating revenues are the general 
appropriation from the University and membership support. 

Release of Restricted Funds - When an expense is incurred for purposes fo r which both restri cted 
and unrestricted resources are available, it is the Station 's policy to apply restricted resources first, 
then unrestricted resources as needed. 

Management's Estimates - The preparation of the financia l statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 

22 



WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 202 1 

make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and 
disc losures in the notes to financial statements. Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements - In fi scal year 2022, the provisions of the 
fo llowing GASB Statements became effecti ve: 

• GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, issued June 20 17. As a resul t of the adoption of GASB 
Statement No. 95, the requirements of this Statement are now effective fo r reporting periods 
beginn ing after June 15, 202 1. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the in fo rmation 
needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and fi nancial reporting for leases 
by governments. 

• GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period, issued June 20 18. As a resul t of GASB Statement No. 95, the 
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning aner December 
15, 2020. The objectives of this Statement are ( I) to enhance the relevance and comparability 
of info rmation about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (2) to 
simpli fy accounting fo r interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period. Starting 
with the fisca l year ended June 30, 2022, interest costs assoc iated with construction will be 
expensed as incurred. 

• GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, issued January 2020. As a result of the adoption of 
GASB Statement No. 95, the requirements of this Statement are effective for fi scal years 
beginning after June 15, 202 1. The objectives of this Statement are to enhance comparability 
in accounting and fi nancial reporting and to improve the consistency of authori tative literature 
by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application 
of certain GASB Statements. 

• GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans-an 
amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement 
No. 32, issued June 2020. The requirements of this Statement are effective fo r fisca l years 
beginning after June 15, 202 1. The primary objectives of thi s Statement are to increase 
consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units; mitigate 
costs assoc iated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans; and enhance 
the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the accounting and financia l reporting for 
Internal Revenue Code (]RC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans. 

Adoption of above standards had no impact on the statements as a whole as there were no 
construction projects in progress and no leases for the Station. 

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements - As of the report date, the GASB issued the fo llowing 
statements not yet implemented by the Station: 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 202 1 

• GASS Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations, issued May 2019. As a result of the 
adoption of GASS Statement No. 95, the requirements of this Statement are effecti ve for 
reporting periods beginning after December IS, 2021. The primary objectives of thi s 
Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and 
eliminate diversity in practice associated with commitments extended by issuers, arrangements 
associated with conduit debt obligations, and related note disclosures. 

• GASS Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability 
Payment Arrangements, issued March 2020. The requirements of this Statement are effective 
for fi scal years beginning after June IS, 2022. The primary objective of this Statement is to 
improve financial reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public 
partnership arrangements. 

• GASS Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, issued 
May 2020. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fi sca l years beginning after 
June IS , 2022. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting 
for subscription-based information technology arrangements for government end users. 

• GASS Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022, issued April 2022. The requirements of this 
statement are effective immediately, with the exception of requirements related to leases, PPPs 
and SSITAs effective June 30, 2023; and the requirements related to financial guarantees and 
the classification and reporting of derivative instruments effective June 30, 2024. The 
Statements enhances comparability in accounting and financial reporting and improves the 
consistency of authoritative I iterature. 

• GASS Statement No. I 00, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections-an amendment of 
GASE Statement No. 62, issued June 2022. The requirements of this Statement are effective 
for fi scal years beginning after June IS, 2023 . The primary objective of this Statement is to 
enhance accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error 
corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable 
in formation for making decisions or assessing accountability. 

• GASS Statement No. IO I, Compensated Absences, issued June 2022. The requirements of 
this Statement are effective fo r fi scal years beginning after December IS, 2023. The objective 
of this statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by 
updating the recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences. 

The Station has not yet determined the effect these Statements will have on the Station's financial 
statements and disc losures. 
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WYSU•FM YOUNGSTOWN STATE UNIVERSITY RADIO 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.) 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 202 1 

Note 2 - Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For financia l statement presentation purposes, the Station's cash in banks has been combined with 
the University's cash equiva lents and temporary investments. 
Depos itory funds held in the name of the Uni versity are secured by a pool of securities with a value 
of at least I 05% of the total value of monies on deposit at the depository bank. All collateral, both 
specific and pooled, is held by the Federa l Reserve Bank or by a designated trustee as agent fo r 
the public depositories used by the University. 

The University's cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 202 1 consisted of the 
fo llowing: 

2022 202 1 

Carrying Amount (Cash and cash equivalents) $ 29,097,272 $ 26,292,042 

FDI C Insured $ 750,000 $ 678,409 
Uninsured but collateralized by pools o f securities pledged by 

the depository banks 1,263,509 82 1,090 
Uninsured but assets held in name of YSU not pledged as 

collateral elsewhere 27,757,496 26,609,707 
Bank Balance $ 29,771 ,005 $ 28,109,206 

The difference in carrying amount and bank balance is caused by items in transit and outstanding 
checks. The University's deposits held in safekeeping by a bank, as trustee or escrow agent, 
included in cash totaled $47,230 at June 30, 2022 and $17,930 at June 30, 202 1, which 
approx imates market. These deposits, including interest on the investments, are retained in the 
trust fo r projects funded by bond proceeds and payment of principal and interest on outstanding 
indebtedness. 

The Station' s cash and cash equivalents are included in these tota ls and were $ I ,918, 160 and 
$1,904,033 at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 202 1, respectively. 

Credit risk fo r deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank fa il ure, the University ' s deposits may 
not be returned to the University. At June 30, 2022 and June 30, 202 1, all uncollateral ized or 
uninsured depos its of the Uni versity are exposed to credit risk. The Uni versity' s investment policy 
and asset allocation guidelines fac ilitate the management and monitoring of credit risk. 

Note 3 - Investments 

The University's investment poli cy authorizes the University to invest non-endowed and endowed 
University funds in compliance with prov isions of the Ohio Revised Code includ ing House Bi ll 
524, Section 3345.05 of the Ohio Revised Code, and all other applicable laws and regulations. 
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In accordance with the Policies of the Board of Trustees of the Uni versity, investment types are 
not specifically limited but shall be made with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 
circumstances then prevailing that a prudent person acting in like capacity and familiar with such 
matters would use in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims. 
Furthermore, investments shall be managed fo r the use and benefit of the University in a diversified 
portfo lio that focuses, over time, on the preservation of capital, minimization of cost and ri sk, and 
maintenance of required levels of liquidity in the overall portfolio to meet cash flow requirements. 

The University utilizes an investment advisor and investment managers fo r endowment funds. 
University endowment investments were $12,287,093 as of June 30, 2022 and $ 14,396,209 as of 
June 30, 202 1. The Station' s restricted investments represent WYSU-FM' s endowment fund , 
which includes endowment corpus and undistributed investment earnings. Investment income is 
allocated to the Station' s endowment fund on a monthly basis based on the value of WYSU-FM's 
endowment fund in relation to the total value of the University's endowments. The fa ir value of 
the Station' s endowment investments was $240,243 as of June 30, 2022 and $283,92 1 as of June 
30, 202 1. 

The Station' s investments measured and reported at fa ir value are classified according to the 
following hierarchy: 

Level I - Investments reflect prices quoted in active markets. 

Level 2 - Investments reflect prices that are based on a similar observable asset either 
directly or indirectly, which may include inputs in markets that are not considered to be 
active. 

Level 3 - Investments reflect prices based upon unobservable sources. 

The categorization of investments within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of 
the instrument and should not be perceived as the particular investment' s risk. 

Assets classified in Level I of the fair value hierarchy are valued directly from a primary external 
pricing vendor. Level 2 inputs are valued using a matrix pricing model. 

As of June 30, 2022, the Station had the fo llowing investments measured at fa ir value: 
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U.S. Government Obligat ions 
Corporate Bonds 
Fore ign Bonds 
Bond Mutual Funds 
Common Stock 
Equity M utua l Funds 
Totals 

$ 

$ 

Fair Va lue Measurement 
Level l Level 2 Level 3 

$ 14,4 15 $ $ 
26,428 

3,604 
11,772 

145,586 
38,438 

195,796 $ 44,447 $ $ 

Total 
14,4 15 
26,428 

3,604 
11 ,772 

145,586 
38,438 

240,243 

As of June 30, 202 1, the Station had the fo llowing investments measured at fa ir value: 

Fair Value Measurement 
Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total 

U.S. Government Ob ligat ions $ $ 5,962 $ $ 5,962 
Corp orate Bonds 13,346 13,346 
U.S. Government Bonds 3, 123 3, 123 
Bond Mutua l Funds 2,555 2,555 
Preferred Stock 2,27 1 2,271 
Common Stock 199,596 199,596 
Equity M utua l Funds 57,068 57,068 
Tota ls $ 259,2 19 $ 24,702 $ $ 283,92 1 

As of June 30, 2022, the Station had the fo llowing investments and maturities using the segmented 
time distribution method: 

Investment Maturities ( in Years) 
Investment Type Fa ir Va lue Less than 1 1-5 6- 1 0 More than I 0 

U.S. Government Obligations $ 14,4 15 $ 4,805 $ 9 ,6 10 $ $ 
Corpora te Bonds 26,428 2,883 23,545 
Fore ign Bonds 3,604 3,604 

Bond M utua l Funds 11 ,772 11 ,772 
Common Stock 145,586 145,586 
Equity M utua l Funds 38,438 38,438 
Tota ls $ 240,243 $ 203,484 $ 36,759 $ $ 

All callable stocks were assumed to mature in less than one year. 

As of June 30, 2021, the Station had the fo llowing investments and maturities using the 
segmented time distribution method: 
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Investment Maturities (in Years) 
Investment Type Fair Value Less than I 

$ 5,962 
5, 111 
3, 123 

2,555 
2,27 1 

1-5 6-1 0 More than 10 
U.S . Government Obligations 
Corpora te Bonds 

$ 5,962 $ $ $ 

U.S. Government Bonds 

Bond M utua l Funds 
Preferred Stock 
Common Stock 
Equity Mutua l Funds 
Totals 

13,346 
3, 123 

2,555 
2,27 1 

199,596 
57,068 

$ 283,92 1 

199,596 
57,068 

$ 275,686 

8,235 

$ 8,235 

All callable stocks were assumed to mature in less than one year. 

$ 

As of June 30, 2022, investments had the fo llowing quality credit ratings: 

Investment Type Fair Value Aaa Aa A 
Corporate Bonds $ 26,428 $ 4,934 $ $ 14, 113 
Foreign Bonds 3,604 3,604 
Bond Mutual Funds 11,772 6,746 
Totals $ 41 ,804 $ 11,680 $ $ 17,7 17 

As of June 30, 2021 , investments had the fo llowing quality cred it ratings: 

Investment Type Fair Value Aaa Aa A 
Corporate Bonds $ 13,346 $ 5,286 $ $ 8,060 
U.S. Government Bonds 3, 123 3, 123 
Bond Mutual Funds 2,555 49 
Totals $ 19,024 $ 5,335 $ 3, 123 $ 8,060 

$ 

Baa 
$ 7,38 1 

4,968 
$ 12,349 

Baa 
$ 

2,478 
$ 2,478 

Unrated 
$ 

58 
$ 58 

Unrated 
$ 

28 
$ 28 

Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect 
the fa ir value of an investment. The Un iversity's investment policy and asset allocation guideli nes 
facilitate the management and monitoring of its exposure to fa ir va lue losses arising from 
increasing interest rates. 

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not 
ful fi ll its obligations. Credit quality, as commonly expressed in terms of cred it ratings issued by 
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations such as Moody's Investors Services, Standard 
& Poor' s or Fitch rating provides a current depiction of potential variable cash flows and cred it 
risk. The University' s investment po licy and asset allocation guidel ines contain provisions to 
manage credit risk. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial cred it risk is the risk that in the event of the fa ilure of the 
counterparty to a transaction, the University wi ll not be able to recover the va lue of investments 
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. Investments that are both 
unregistered and un insured are exposed to custodial credit risk if investments are held by the 
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counterparty or are held by the counterparty's trust department or agent but not in the name of the 
University. At June 30, 2022 and 202 1, the University had no exposure to custodial credit risk. 
The University does not address custodial cred it risk in its investment policy and asset allocation 
guide lines. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the 
magnitude of investment in a single issuer. As of June 30, 2022, $5, 113,700 or 7% of the 
University's portfo lio was held in an intermediate bond fu nd and $5,343,570 or 8% was held in a 
short-term bond fund. As of June 30, 202 1, $5,647,949 or 7% was held in an intermediate bond 
fund. 
Foreign Currencv Risk - Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates wil l 
adverse ly affect the fa ir value of an investment or deposit. At June 30, 2022 and 202 1, the 
University had no materia l exposure to fo reign currency risk. The University does not address 
fore ign currency risk in its investment policy and asset allocation guidelines. 

Note 4 - Capital Assets 

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as fo llows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

Depreciable assets: 
Antenna and lower $ 552,979 $ $ $ 552,979 
S1ud io and broadcasl equipment 133,032 133,032 

Total cost 686,01 1 686,0 11 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 564,599 17,947 582,546 

Capital assets, net $ 12 1,4 12 $ ( 17,947) $ $ 103,465 

Capital assets activity fo r the year ended June 30, 202 1 was as fol lows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

Depreciable assets: 
Antenna and tower $ 600,660 $ $ 47,681 $ 552,979 
Studio and broadcast equipment 281.73 1 148.699 133.032 

Total cost 882,391 196,380 686.011 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 729,155 31.824 196,380 564.599 

Capital assets, net $ 153,236 $ (31 ,824) $ $ 121 ,412 

Note 5 - Com11ensated Absences 

Compensated Absences at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 202 1 were as fo llows: 
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2022 2021 
Beginning Balance $ 44,520 $ 67,069 

Additions 

Reductions {5, l 77~ 22,549 
Ending Balance 49,696 44,520 
Less: current portion 9,646 6,272 
Compensated Absences, noncurrent portion $ 40,050 $ 38,248 

Note 6 - Emplovee Benefit Plans 

Plan Descriptions 
The Station participates in the Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), statewide, 
cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit public employee retirement system governed by 
the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) that covers all employees of the Station. The system has multiple 
retirement plan options available to its members, with three options. The system provides 
retirement, survivor, and disability benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. The system 
also provides post-employment health care benefits (including Medicare B premiums) to retirees 
and beneficiaries who elect to rece ive those benefits. 

The retirement system issues a publicly available financ ial report that includes financial statements 
and required supplementary information for the pension and post-employment health care plans. 
The report may be obtained by contacting: 

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System 
277 East Town Street 
Columbus, Ohio 432 15 
(800) 222-7377 
www.opers.org 

Contributions 
State retirement law requires contributions by covered employees and their employers, and 
Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code (ORC) limits the maximum rate of contributions. The 
retirement board of the system sets contributions rates within the allowable limits. The adequacy 
of employer contribution rates is determined annually by actuarial valuation using the entry age 
normal cost method. Under these provisions, the Station's contribution is expected to finance the 
costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an add itional amount to finance a 
portion of the unfunded accrued liability. 

Member contributions are set at the maximums authorized by the ORC. The plan ' s 2022 and 2021 
employer and member contribution rates on covered payroll to each system are: 
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OPERS-State/Local 
Pension 
14.0% 

Employer Contribution Rate 
Post­

Retirement 
Healthcare 

0.0% 

Death 
Benefits 

0.0% 
Medicare B 

0.0% 

The required and actual contributions to the plans are: 

2022 2021 

Pension OPES Pension 
OPERS $ 50,659 $ 46. 172 

Benefits Provided 

OPERS 

Total 
14 .0% 

Member 
Contribution 

Rate 

Total 
10.0% 

Plan benefits are established under Chapter 145 of the ORC, as amended by Substitute Senate Bill 
343 in 20 12. The requirements to retire depends on years of serv ice (5 to 30 years) and from 
attaining the age of 48 to 62, depending on when the employee became a member. Members 
retiring before age 65 with less than 30 years' service credit receive a percentage reduction in 
benefit, except for public safety and law enforcement participants. Member retirement benefits are 
calculated on a fo rmula that considers years of service (5-30 years), age (48-62 years) and final 
average salary, using a factor ranging from I percent to 2.5 percent. 

A plan member who becomes disabled before age 60 or at any age, depend ing on when the member 
entered the plan, and has completed 60 contributing months is eligible fo r a disability benefit. 

A death benefit of $500 - $2,500 is determined by the number of years of service credit of the 
retiree. Benefits may transfer to a beneficiary upon death with 1.5 years of service cred its with the 
plan obtained within the last 2.5 years, except for law enforcement and public safety personnel 
who are eligible immediate ly upon employment. 

Benefit terms provide fo r annual cost-of-living adjustments to each employee' s retirement 
allowance subsequent to the employee's retirement date. The annual adj ustment, if applicable, is 
3 percent, or an amount based on the average percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index, 
capped at 3 percent. 

Net Pension Liabilitv, Deferrals, and Pension Expense 
At June 30, 2022 and 202 1, the Station reported a liability for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability of OPERS. For June 30, 2022, the net pension liabi lity was measured as of 
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December 3 1, 202 1. For June 30, 202 1, the net pension liabi lity was measured as of December 3 1, 
2020. The total pension liabi lity used to calcu late the net pension liabil ity was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of those dates. The University' s proportion of the net pension liability was 
based on a projection of its long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating reporting units, actuarially determined. At June 30, 
2022 and 2021 , the University's proportionate share of the net pension liabi lity was 0.2347% and 
0.223%, respectively. The amount the University al located to the Station is based on total 
retirement contributions for the Station' s employees as a percentage of the total retirement 
contributions fo r the Univers ity. At June 30, 2022 and 202 1, the Station ' s allocation of the 
University's proportion was 0.944% and 1.08%, respectively. 

Plan 
OPERS 

Meas ure rne nt 
Date 

Dece mber 3 1 

Net Pe ns io n Liability 
2022 202 1 

$ 183,658 $ 349,84 1 

Propo rtio nate Share 
2022 2021 

0.0022 16% 0.002413% 

Change 
202 1-22 

-0.000197% 

Change 
2020-21 

-0.000596% 

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 202 I, the Station recognized pension expense of ($100,349) 
and ($ 111 , 158), respectively. At June 30, 2022 and 202 1, the Station repo1ted deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

2022 2021 
Defen-ed Defen-ed Defen-ed Defen-ed 

Outflows of Inflows o f Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources Resources Resources 

DilTerenccs between expected and ac tua l $ 10, 154 $ 5,426 $ 145 $ 16,786 
experience 

Changes o fassumptions 24,823 587 
Net difference between projected and actual 

earnings o n pens ion plan in ves tments 233,350 14 1,465 
Chan ges in proportio n and d ilTerences between 

Un ivers ity contributions and proportionate 
s hare of contributio ns 4,458 9,283 204 37,725 

University contribut io ns s ubsequen t 
to th e meas urement date 26. 170 27,761 

Totals $ 65.605 $ 248,059 $ 28,697 $ 195,976 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources/ (deferred inflows of resources) related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
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Year Ended June 30 Amount 
2023 $ (36. 187) 
2024 (80.387) 
2025 (54.923) 
2026 (37. 196) 
2027 (33) 

Thereafter 102 
Totals $ (208.624) 

In addition, the contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included as a reduction 
of the net pension liability in the next year. 

Net OPEB Liabilitv, Deferrals, and OPEB Expense 
At June 30, 2022, the Station repo11ed an (asset) for its proportionate share of the net OPEB (asset) 
of OPERS. For June 30, 2022, the net OPEB (asset) was measured as of December 3 1, 202 1. For 
June 30, 202 1, the net OPEB liability was measured as of December 3 1, 2020. The total OPEB 
liability/(asset) used to ca lculate the net OPEB liabi lity/(asset) was determ ined by an actuarial 
valuation dated December 3 1, 2020 and 20 19, respectively, rolled forward to the measurement 
date by incorporating the expected va lue of health care cost accruals, the actual health care 
payments, and interest accruals during the year for the defined benefit health care plans. 

Typically, the Station' s proportion of the net OPEB liabil ity/(asset) would be based on a projection 
of its long-term share of contributions to the OPEB plan relative to the projected contributions of 
all pat1icipating reporting units, actuarially determined, except as noted below. 

For plan years ending December 3 1, 202 1 and 2020, OPERS did not allocate employer 
contributions to the OPEB plan. Therefore, OPERS' calculation of the employers' proportionate 
share is based on total contributions to the plan fo r both pension and OPEB. 

At June 30, 2022 and 202 1, the Uni versity's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) 
was 0.2327% and 0.222%, respective ly. The amount the Uni versity allocated to the Station is 
based on total retirement contributions fo r the Station' s employees as a percentage of the tota l 
retirement contributions for the University. At June 30, 2022 and 202 1, the Station' s allocation of 
the University's proportion was .944% and 1.08%, respectively. 

Plan 
OPERS 

Measurement Net OPEB Liability (Asset) Proportionate Share Change Change 
Date 2022 202 1 2022 202 1 2021 -22 2020-2 1 

December 31 $ (68,809) $ ( 42. 75 1) 0.002 I 97% 0.002-100% -0.000203% 0.058000% 

For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 202 1, the Station recognized OPEB expense of ($83,040) 
and ($327,940), respective ly. At June 30, 2022 and 202 1, the Station reported deferred outflows 
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the fo llowing sources. 
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2022 2021 
Deferred Deferred Defe1Ted 

Outflows o f Inflows o f Outflows o f 
Resources Resources Resources 

DilTerences between expected a nd ac tua l $ $ 10.437 $ 
experience 

Cha nges o f ass umptio ns 27.854 2 1.016 
Net difle rence between projected a nd ac tua l 

earnings o n OPEB inves tments 32.804 
Changes in propo rtio n and diflcrenccs between 

University contributio ns a nd proportio nate 
s hare of contributions 1,69 1 6,256 2 

Univers ity co ntributio ns s ubseque nt 
to the nieas ure me nt ela te 

Totals $ 1,69 1 $ 77.351 $ 21.018 

Deferred 
Innows of 
Resources 
$ 38.580 

69.267 

22,769 

23,044 

$ 153.660 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources/ (deferred inflows of resources) related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as fo llows: 

Year Ended June 30 Amount 
2023 $ (49, 11 5) 
2024 ( 14,666) 
2025 (7, 167) 
2026 (4,71 2) 
2027 

Thereafter 
To tals $ (75.660) 

In addition, if applicable, the contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be included 
as a reduction of the net OPEB liabil ity in the next year. 
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Actuarial Assumptions 
The total pension liability and OPEB liab ility/(asset) is based on the results of an actuarial 
valuation and were determined using the fo llowing actuarial assumptions for the Station's current 
year. 

OPERS 

Valuatio n date - Pe n s io n December 3 I. 202 1 

Valuat io n date - OPEB December 3 I, 2020 

Actuarial cos t method Indiv idual enlly age 

Cost of liv ing 2.05% - 3.00% 

Salary inc reases, including 2.75% - 10.75% 

in Oat io n 

Ln fla t ion 2.75% 

In ves tmen t rate o f 6.90%, n e t o r in ves tment expense. 

re turn - Pens io n inc lud ing in nat io n 

lnvestment rate o f 6.00%, n e t o f in ves tme nt expense. 

re turn - O P EB in c lud in_g inflat io n 

Health care cos t t ren d rates 5.5% initial, 3.50% ultimate in 2034 

Experien ce s tudy date Pe riod ors years ended December 3 1. 2020 

M o n a lity bas is Pre -re tirement mo 11ality rates a re based o n 130% of 

the Pu b-2010 Genera l Emp loyee Mo11ality tab les 

(males an d fema les) fo r Sta te and Local Government 

div is ions a nd 170% o rthe Pub-20 10 Safe ty 

Employee Morta lity tab les (males and fema les) fo r 

the Public Safe ty an d Law Enforcement div is ions . 

Post-retire men t mo n ality rates are based on 115% o f 

the PubG-2010 Re tiree M o 11ality Tables (ma les and 

fe ma les) for a ll divis ions. Post-ret ire ment mo11a lity 

rates fo r disab led re t irees are based o n the Pub NS-

20 10 Disabled Retiree M o 11ality Tab les (males and 

fo ma les) fo r a ll div is io ns. For a ll of the p revious ly 

described tab les. the base year is 2010 a nd mo 11a lity 

rates fo r a particu Ja r calendar year a re dete rmined by 

applying th e MP-2020 mo 11a lity improvemen t scales 

(males and females) to a ll o f these tab les. 
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The fo llowing are actuarial assumptions for the University' s prior year: 

OPERS 

Valuatio n date - Pens io n December 3 1, 2020 

Valua tio n date - OPEB December 3 1. 2019 
Actuaria l cos t me thod Ind ividua l ent ry age 
Cos t ofliving .50% - 3.00% 
Salary increas es. inc lud ing 3.25% - 10.75% 

inflat ion 
In tlation 3.25% 
Investment rate of 7.20%, net o f inves tment expen se, 

return - Pe ns io n inclucl ing in Oat io n 

Inves tment rate o r 6.00%, ne t o f inves tment expe nse, 
return - OPEB inc luding inflation 

Health care cos t trend rates 8.5% initial. 3.50% ultimate in 2035 
Experience s tudy date Period o f 5 years ended December 31.201 5 
Mortality bas is RP-20 14 Healthy Ann uitant 

M ortality Table 

Pension Discount Rate 
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee 
contributions wi ll be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions wi ll be 
made at contractually required rates for all plans. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan' s 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
for current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability. The discount rates used to measure the total pension liability for OPERS 
were 6.90 percent and 7.20 percent for the plan years ended December 31 , 202 1 and 2020, 
respectively. 

OPEB Discount Rate 
The projection of cash flo ws used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee 
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contri butions will be 
made at contractually required rates for all plans. Plans that project fiduciary net position to be 
insufficient to make all projected future benefit payments for current active and inactive employees 
used a blended discount rate between the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments 
and a 20-year municipal bond rate applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine 
the total OPEB liability/(asset). 
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OPERS OPEB Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB li abilities/(assets) 
was 6.00 percent fo r the plan years ended December 3 1, 202 1 and 2020, respectively. At December 
31, 202 1 and 2020, the plan 's fiduciary net pos ition was projected to be available to make al l 
projected future benefit payments fo r current acti ve and inactive employees. Therefore, the long 
term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liabi lity. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan and OPEB plan investments was determined 
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
( expected returns, net of plan investment expense and in nation) are developed for each major asset 
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting 
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by add ing 
expected inflation. OPERS has two different portfo lios of investment, a defined benefit portfolio 
fo r pension and health care portfolio for OPEB. As a result, there are different target allocations 
and long-term expected real rates of return disclosed fo r each portfolio. The target a ll ocation and 
best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return fo r each major asset c lass are summarized in the 
fo llowing table as of the dates listed be low: 

OP E RS as of 12/31/2 1 

Pension Port fo lio Health Care Portfo lio 

Long-Term Long-Term 
Investment Target expected Real Target expected Real 

Category Allocation Rate of Re turn Allocation Rate of Re turn 
Fixed income 24.0% 1.32% 3-1.0% 1.07% 

Domestic Equities 21 .0% 5 .64% 25.0% 5.64% 
Real Estate 11 .0% 5 .39% 0.0% 0.00% 
Private Equity 12.0% 10.42% 0.0% 0.00% 
Int ernational Equity 23.0% 7.36% 25.0% 7.36% 

Risk Pa rity 5.0% 2.92% 2.0% 2 .92% 
RE!Ts 0.0% 0.00% 7.0% 3.7 1% 
Othe r ln vesm ents 4.0% 2.85% 7.0% 1.93% 

100.0% 100.0% 

OP ERSasof 12/3 1/20 

Pension Portfolio Health Care Pon fo lio 
Long-Term Lo ng-Term 

Investment Target expected Rea l T arget expected Real 
Category Allocat ion Rate of RetLu-n Allocat io n Rate of Ret urn 

Fixed income 25.0% 1.32% 34.0% 1.07% 
Domestic Equit ics 2 1.0% 5.64% 25.0% 5.64% 
Real Estate 10.0% 5.39% 0.0% 0.00% 
Private Equity 12.0% 10.42% 0.0% 0.00% 
Int ern at ional Equity 23.0% 7.36% 25 .0% 7.36% 
R.E ITs 0.0% 0.00% 7 .0% 6.48% 
Other ln vesrnent s 9.0% 4.75% 9.0% 4.02% 

100.0% 100.0% 
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Sensitivitv o{the net pension liabilitv to changes in the discount rate 
The fo llowing presents the net pension liabili ty of the Station calculated using the discount rate 
listed below, as well as what the Station' s net pension liability would be if it were ca lculated using 
a discount rate that is 1.00 percentage-point lower or 1.00 percentage-point higher than the current 
rate. 

Plan 
OPERS 

Plan 
OPERS 

1% Decrease 
5.90% $ 504 

1% Decrease 
6.20% $ 679 

2022 ($ in thousands) 
Current Discount Rate 

6.90% $ 184 

202 1 ($ in thousands) 
Current Discount Rate 

7.20% $ 350 

1% Increase 
7.90% $ (83) 

1% Increase 
8.20% $ 77 

Sensitivitv o[the 11et OPEB liabilitl/(asset) to changes in the discount rate 
The following presents the net OPEB liability/(asset) of the Station, calculated using the discount 
rate listed below, as we ll as what the Station's net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1.00 percentage point lower or 1.00 percentage point higher 
than the current rate: 

Plan 
OPERS 

Plan 
OPERS 

1% Decrease 
5.00% $ (40) 

1% Decrease 
5.00% $( 11 ) 

2022 ($ in thousands) 

Current Discount Rate 
6.00% $ (69) 

202 1 ($ in thousands) 
Current Discount Rate 

6.00% $ (43) 

1% Increase 
4. 16% $ (92) 

1% Increase 
7.00% $ (69) 

Sensitivitv o[the net OPEB liabilitvl(asset) to changes in the health care cost trend rate 
The fo llowing presents the net OPEB liability of the Station, calculated using the healthcare cost 
trend rate li sted below, as well as what the Station's net OPEB liability/(asset) would be if it were 
calculated using a health care cost trend rate that is 1.00 percentage po int lower or I .00 percentage 
point higher than the current rate: 

Plan 
OPERS 

Plan 
OPERS 

1% Decrease 
($70) 

1% Decrease 
($44) 

2022 ($ in thousands) 

Current Trend Rate 1% Increase 
($69) ($68) 

202 1 ($ in thousands) 
Current T rend Rate 1% Increase 

($43) ($42) 
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Pension plan and OPEB plan fiduciarv net position 
Detailed information about the pension plan 's fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued OPERS financial report. 

Benefit changes 
Effective in 2022, OPERS will replace the current se lf-insured group plan with a marketplace 
concept for pre-Medicare retirees. 

Assumption changes 
During the measurement period ended December 31, 202 1, certain assumption changes were made 
by the plan. The OPERS pension discount rate was reduced from 7.20 percent to 6.90 percent, 
which impacted the annual actuarial valuation fo r the pension liability as of December 31, 202 1. 

During the measurement period ended December 31, 2020, certain assumption changes were made 
by the plan. The OPERS OPES discount rate was increased from 3. 16 percent to 6.00 percent, 
which impacted the annual actuarial valuation for OPES prepared as of December 31, 2020. 

Pavable to the Pension Plan and OPEB Plan 
The Station reported a payable of $8,583 and $7,751 for the outstanding amount of contributions 
to the OPERS pension plan required for the years ended June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021 , 
respectively. 

Defined Contribution Pension Plan 
The Alternative Retirement Plan (ARP) is a defined contri bution pension plan, under I RS Section 
40 I (a), and established by Ohio Amended Substitute House Bill 586 (ORC 3305 .02) on March 31, 
1997, for public institutions of higher education. The University 's Board of Trustees adopted the 
University' s plan on December 11 , 1998. Full-time employees are eligible to choose a provider, 
in lieu of OPERS, from the list of nine providers currently approved by the Ohio Department of 
Insurance and who hold agreements with the Un iversity. Employee and employer contributions 
equal to those required by OPERS are required for the ARP, less any amounts required to be 
remitted to the state retirement system in wh ich the employee would otherwise have been enrolled. 

Eligible employees have 120 days from their date of hire to make an irrevocable election to 
participate in the ARP. Under thi s plan, employees who would have otherwise been required to be 
in OPERS, and who elect to participate in the ARP, must contribute the employee's share of 
retirement contributions to one of nine private providers approved by the Ohio Department of 
Insurance. The legislation mandates that the employer must contribute an amount to the state 
retirement system to which the employee would have otherwise belonged, based on an independent 
actuarial study commissioned by the Ohio Retirement Study Council and submitted to the Ohio 
Department of Higher Education. That amount is 2.44 percent fo r OPERS fo r the years ended June 
30, 2022 and 2021. If the employee was hired on or after August 2005, the employer contributes 
6.00 percent. The employer also contributes what would have been the employer' s contribution 
under OPERS, less the aforementioned percentages, to the private provider selected by the 
employee. The University plan provides these employees with immediate plan vesting. The ARP 
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does not provide disability benefits, survivor benefits, or postretirement health care. Benefits are 
entirely dependent on the sum of contributions and investment returns earned by each participant' s 
choice of investment options. OPE RS also offers a defined contribution plan and a combined plan 
with features of both a defined contribution plan and a defined benefit plan. There were no 
contributions made to the ARP fo r the fi scal years ended June 30, 2022 and 202 1. Contributions 
were equal to the required contributions for each year. 

Note 7 - Related Partv 

Youngstown State University Foundation is a legally separate nonprofit organization exempt from 
federal income tax and classified as a public charity. The Foundation is devoted to the suppo1t , 
expansion, and development of educational programs at the University that are useful and 
beneficial to the students and the community. During fi scal year 20 15, the University entered into 
a development services agreement with the Foundation, wherein the Foundation raises and 
maintains donations on behalf of the University. The Foundation remits all related funds received 
on a monthly bas is. 

The operations of WYSU-FM are supported by general appropriations from the University. The 
University's support allocation totaled $40 I, 139 and $324, I 12 in di rect support for fiscal years 
2022 and 202 1, respectively, and $198,133 and $84,054 in indirect administrative support and 
donated facilities. 

Note 8 - Risk Management 

WYSU-FM is included in the University' s insurance programs. The University is exposed to 
various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; erro rs and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Uni versity has joined with other state­
assisted universities in Ohio to form an insurance pool for the acquisition of commercial property 
and casualty insurance. The University pays annual premiums to the pool for its property and 
casualty insurance coverage based on its percentage of the total insurance value to the pool. Future 
contributions will be adjusted based upon each university' s loss history. The University had no 
significant reductions in coverage from the prior year. Insurance settlements have not exceeded 
insurance coverage fo r each of the past three fiscal years. 

Note 9 - COVID-19 Pandemic 

On March 11 , 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of a respiratory disease 
caused by a new coronav irus a pandemic, now known as COVID- 19. 

To offset the fi nancial im pact to students, the losses incurred by the University due to the 
disruption caused by COYID-1 9 and to defray COYID-1 9 expenses, the University received grants 
and other relief primarily authorized through the Corona virus Aid, Relief, and Economics Security 
(CARES) Act, the Coronav irus Re lief & Recovery Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRRSAA), 
and the American Rescue Plan Act of 202 1. The total amount awarded from the onset of the 
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pandemic to the University through June 30, 2022, cumulatively, was $64.6 mil lion detailed as 
follows: 

Fu nding Agency/ Fund 

Depan ment of Educa tio n - Ed ucatio n Stab ilizatio n Fund 

COVfD-1 9 Hig her Educa tio n Emerg ency Relief Fund - Studen t A id 

COVID-1 9 Hig her Educat io n Eme rgency Relief Fund - Ins titut io na l Po nion 

Un ited States Depanment o f Trcas u ry 

Coronavirus Relie f Fu nd (th roug h the Ohio Dept. of Hig her Educa tio n ) 

Co rporatio n For Pub lic Broadcas t ing 

Emergency Stabilizatio n Fund 

Tota l A wards 

A ward 

$ 25,7 18,908 

32,478,036 

6,221,960 

223,564 

$ 64,642,468 

Revenue, reflected as federal appropriations in the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position fo r the Uni versity, totaled $33,228,720 in fi scal year 2022,$24,976,068 in fi sca l 
year 202 1 and $6,063,592 in fi sca l year 2020. The Station' s federal appropriations are included in 
the University totals and were $0 in fi scal year 2022, $ 166,757 in fi scal year 202 1 and $75,000 in 
fi sca l year 2020. 

Expenses for the University totaled $24,040,000 in fi sca l year 2022, $22,094,262 in fi scal year 
202 1 and $4,298,543 in fiscal year 2020. The Station' s expenses are included in the Uni versity 
totals and were $ 150,995 in fi scal year 2022, $3,657 in fi sca l year 202 1 and $36,372 in fi sca l year 
2020. Substantially all awarded funds have either been spent as of June 30, 2022 or encumbered. 

The severity of the continued impact due to COYID-19 on the University' s financial condition, 
results of operations or cash flows will depend on a number of factors, including, but not limited 
to, the duration and severi ty of the pandemic and the extent and severity of the impact on the 
University' s community, a ll of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted. 

Note 10 - Nonfederal Financial Support 

The Corporation for Public Broadcasting (CPB) allocates a portion of its funds annually to public 
broadcasting entities, primarily based on NFFS. NFFS is defined as the total value of cash and the 
fair market va lue of property and services received as either a contribution or a payment and 
meeting a ll of the respective cri teria fo r each. 

A contribution is cash, property or services given to a public broadcasting enti ty fo r general 
operational purposes. Support received as a contribution by a public broadcasting entity must meet 
the following criteria to be includable as NFFS: ( I ) the source may be an entity except the federal 
government or any other public broadcasting entity; (2) the contribution may take the fo rm of a 
gift, grant, bequest, donation or appropriation; (3) the purpose must be fo r the construction or 
operation of a noncommercial, educational pub I ic broadcast station or for the production, 
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acquisition, distribution or dissemination of educational television or radio program and related 
activities; and (4) the recipient must be a public broadcasting entity on behalf of a public broadcast 
station. However, to eliminate distortions in the TV CSG grant program precipitated by 
extraordinary infusions of new capital investments in DTV, all capita l contributions received fo r 
purposes of acquiring new equipment or upgrading existing or bu ilding new fac ilities regardless 
of source or fo rm of the contribution are not included in calculating the fi scal year 2022 or fi scal 
year 202 1 NFFS. This change excludes all revenues received for any capital purchases. 

A payment is cash, property or services received by a public broadcasting entity from specific 
sources in exchange for specific services or materials. Support received as a payment by a public 
broadcasting enti ty must meet the fo llowing criteria to be includable as NFFS: ( I) the source must 
be a state, any agency or political subdi vision of a state, an educational institution or organization 
or a nonprofit entity; (2) the form of the payment must be appropriations or contract payments in 
exchange for specific services or materials; (3) the purpose must be for any related activity of the 
public broadcast station; and (4) the recipient must be a public broadcasting entity on behalf of a 
public broadcast station. 

Reported NFFS for the Station was $1,161,47 1 and $1,0 I 9,899 for the radio fund for 2022 and 
202 1, respective ly. 
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Plan Years Ended 2014 to 2021 

Plan Year 

Stat ion's 
proportion of 

tht: net pens ion 
liabilit y (asset ) 

tat ion's 
proportionate 

share oft he net 

pens ion liability 
(asset) 

Stat ion's covered 
payroll 

O hio Publi c Employees Re tire me nt Syste m (O PERS) 
2021 0.0022 16% $ 183.658 $ 342.580 
2020 0.0024 13% $ 349.841 $ 362.906 
20 19 0.003009% $ 588.367 $ 450.235 
20 18 0.003204% $ 873.885 $ 473.020 
20 17 0.003238% $ 503.458 $ 464.796 
20 16 0.003304% $ 748.429 $ 46 1.655 
20 15 0.003450% $ 595.4 14 $ 462. 132 
20 14 0.003470% $ 4 16.9 13 $ 445.112 

The plan year ends on December 31 for OPERS. 
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Stat ion's 
proportionate 
share o ft he 

co llective net 
pens ion liability 

as a percentage of 
the employer's 
covered payroll 

53.61% 
96.40% 

130.68% 
184.74% 
108.32% 
162.12% 
128.84% 
93.66% 

Plan fiduciary net 

position as a 
percentage o f the 

total pension 
liability 

93 .01 % 
87.2 1% 
82.44% 
78.00% 
79.00% 
80.00% 
80.00% 
84.00% 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Schedules of the Station's Pension Contributions 

Fiscal Year 

Statuto rily 
required 

contribution 

Cont ributions in 
rclat ion to the 

s tatuto rily 
required 

contributions 

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System (OPEllS) 
2022 $ 50.659 $ 50.659 
202 1 $ 46. 172 $ 46. 172 
2020 $ 57.33 1 $ 57.33 1 
2019 $ 65.665 $ 65.665 
20 18 $ 63.928 $ 63.928 
2017 s 57.269 $ 57.269 
20 16 $ 55.9 12 $ 55.9 12 
20 15 $ 55.579 $ 55.579 

Changes of benefit terms 

Annual 

contribution 
deficiency 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Stal ion's covered 
p ayro ll 

$ 36 1.850 
$ 329.80 1 
$ 409,509 
$ 472.860 
$ 474.256 
$ 459.488 
$ 465.06 1 
$ 46 1.406 

There were no changes in benefit terms affecting the OPERS plan. 

Changes of assumptions 

Conribut ions 

recognized by the 
pension p lan in 
relat ion to the 
s tat uto rily o r 

contract ually required 
emp loyer contributio n 

as a percent of the 
employer's covered 

payroll 

14.00% 
14.00% 
14.00% 
13.89% 
13.48% 
12.4 7% 
12 .02% 
12.05% 

During the plan year ended December 3 1, 202 1, there were changes to severa l assumptions for 
OPERS. The discount rate was reduced from 7.2% to 6.9%. The wage inflation dropped from 
3.25% to 2.75%. The projected salary increase range changed from 3.25%- 10.75% to 2.75%-
10.75%, The experience study changed from the 5-year period ended December 31, 20 15 to the 5-
year period ended December 31, 2020. The mortali ty tables used changed from RP2014 to PUB-
20 10. 

During the plan year ended December 31, 2018, the discount rate was reduced from 7.5% to 7.2%. 
Duri ng the plan year ended December 31, 20 16, there were changes to several assumptions for 
OPERS. The wage inflation dropped from 3.75% to 3.25%. The projected salary increase range 
changed from 4.25%- 10.05% to 3.25%-1 0.75%. The mortali ty tables used changed from RP-2000 
to RP-20 14. 
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Schedules of the Station's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability (Asset) 
Plan Years Ended 2017 to 2021 

Plan Year 

Stations 's 
pro po rtio n o r 
the net OPEB 
liabi lity (asset) 

Station's 
p roportio nat..: 

share o r the net 
OPEB liability 

(asset ) 
Stat ion's covered 

payroll 

Ohio Public Employees Retireme nt Syste m (OPERS) 
202 1 0.002 197% $ (68.809) $ 342.580 
2020 0.002400% $ (42,75 1) $ 362.906 
20 19 0.002980% $ 4 I 1.635 $ 450.235 

20 18 0.002325% $ 303. 125 $ 473.020 
20 17 0.003 11 4% $ 338. 157 $ 464.796 

The plan year ends on December 31 for OPERS. 
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Stat ion's 
proport ionate 
shar..: o r the 

co lkct ive 11..:1 P Ian fiduciary 
OPEB liability net p osition as a 

(asset ) as a percentage o r the 
perc..:ntag..: o f the total O PEB 

cmp layer's liability (asset) 

20.09% 128.23% 
11.78% 115.57% 
9 1.43% 47.80% 
64.09% 46.33% 
72.76% 54.14% 
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION 

Schedules of the Station's OPEB Contributions 

Conributions 
recognized by the 

OPEB plan in relat ion 

to the statutorily or 
contractually required 

employer contribution 

as a percent of the Statutorily 

required 

Contribut ions in 

rel at ion to the 
s tatuto rily 

requ ired A nnual contribution Stat ion's employer's covered 

Fiscal Year contribution contributions ___ de_fi_ci_c1_1c~y __ covered pay ro ll pay roll 
Ohio Public Employees Re tirement System (OPERS) 

2022 $ $ 

202 1 $ $ 
2mo $ $ 
2019 $ $ 

2018 $ 2.468 $ 2.468 

Changes of benefit terms 

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ -

$ 36 1.850 0.00% 
$ 329,801 0.00% 
$ 409.509 0.00% 
$ 472.860 0.00% 
$ 474,256 0.52% 

There were no significant changes in benefit terms affecting the OPERS plan for the plan year 
ended December 3 1, 202 1. 

Changes of assumptions 
During the year ended December 202 1, there were changes to severa l assumptions for OPERS. 
The experience study changed from the 5-year period ended December 31, 20 15 to the 5-year 
period ended December 3 1, 2020. The municipa l bond rate decreased from 2.00% to 1.84%. 
Wage inflation decreased 3.25% to 2 .75%. The projected salary increase range changed from 
3.25%-1 0.75% to 2.75%-1 0.75%. Health care cost trend rate decreased from 8.50% initial, 3.50% 
ultimate in 2035 to 5.50% initia l, 3.50% ultimate in 2034. 

During the plan year ended December 3 1, 2020, there were changes to several assumptions for 
OPERS. The health care cost trend rates decreased from I 0.5% initial and 3.50% ultimate to 
8.50% initial and 3.50% ultimate. The d iscount rate increased fro m 3. 16% to 6.00%. 

During the plan year ended December 3 1, 20 19, there were changes to several assumptions for 
OPERS. The health care cost trend rates decreased from I 0.00% initia l and 3.25% ultimate to 
I 0.50% initia l and 3.50% ultimate. The discount rate was reduced from 3.96% to 3. 16%. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of 
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To Management and the Board of Trustees 
WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities of WYSU-FM 
Youngstown State University Radio (the "Station"), a department of Youngstown State University, which comprise 
the basic statement of net position as of June 30, 2022 and the basic statements of revenue, expenses and 
changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements 
and have issued our report thereon dated December 9, 2022. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Station's internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements , but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Station's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Station's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Station's financial 
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
may exist that have not been identified. 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Station's financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and, 
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance 
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

47 
fJPRAXIT'I 



To Management and the Board of Trustees 
WYSU-FM Youngstown State University Radio 

Purpose of This Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Station's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the Station's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

December 9, 2022 
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